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PART I

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiadficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs“anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar such words constitute forvkmoking statements within the meaning of the Pava8ecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forward{ooking statements involve known and unknown riskacertainties, and other factors that may causeaotual result
performance, or achievements to be materially diffe from any future results, performance, or aghigents expressed or implied by <
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amoingrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our maintnce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation, our ability to maiiafavorable supplier arrangements and relatiorsstopr ability to quickly increase capacity
response to an increase in demand, our abilitetess the market, our ability to maintain or lowssduction costs, our ability to continue
finance research and development as well as opesasind expansion of production, the increasedest®f larger market players, specific
Becton Dickinson and Company (“BD”), in providingwces to the safety market, and other factorseafeed inltem 1A. Risk Factors.
Given these uncertainties, undue reliance shoulth@@laced on forward-looking statements.

Iltem 1. Business.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General Development of Business

On May 9, 1994, our company was incorporated inaSeto design, develop, manufacture, and marketvati@ patented safe
medical products for the healthcare industry.

Our goal is to become a leading provider of safie¢ylical products.

Advantages of our VanishPoifft safety products include protection from needlestigliries, prevention of cross contamina
through reuse, and reduction of disposal and atksociated costs. Federal regulation now reqtiresise of safe needle devices. We
developed and are developing new safety medicalymts, some of which do not utilize our patentdtaction technology.

Our VanishPoin® safety products (consisting of ltaherculin, insulin, and allergy antigen VanishR& syringes; 0.5mL, 2m|
3mL, 5mL, and 10mL VanishPoif®t  syringes; the VARigint® blood collection tube holder; autodisalygngie; and the VanishPoifit IV
safety catheter) utilize a unique friction ring rhanism patented by Thomas J. Shaw, our Foundesjderg, and Chief Executive Office
VanishPoint® safety needle products are designed specificalprégent needlestick injuries and to prevent retdee friction ring mechanis
permits the automated retraction of the needle th&o barrel of the syringe, directly from the patjeafter delivery of the medication
completed. The VanishPoifitblood collection tube holder utilizes the same na@i$m to retract the needle after blood has beawrdfron
the patient. Closure of an attached end cap oblbed collection tube holder causes the needleetiact directly from the patient into
closed blood collection tube holder. The IV safetyheter also operates with a friction ring me&ranwhereby the needle is retracted
insertion of the catheter into the patient. Wendlave a Patient Safe syringe which is uniquely designed to reduce thk df bloodstreal
infections resulting from catheter hub contaminatio

Our products have been and continue to be dis&tiboationally through numerous distributors. Hogrewe have been blocked fr
access to the market by exclusive marketing prestengaged in by BD which dominates our market. iMiiated a lawsuit in 2007 agail
BD. The suit was for patent infringement, antitrpgactices, and false advertising. The court ali¢he patent claims from the other cle
pending resolution of the patent dispute. In M@g@ the Court determined that BD’s Integra progluefringed our patents, but the Coart’
injunction was stayed pending appeal, so the pttsdeenain in the market at this time. However, Biluntarily removed its 1cc syringes fr
the market. The portion of the suit regardingtaumi and other claims is currently scheduled ttrieel in the first quarter of 2012.
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We continue to attempt to gain access to the mahketigh our sales efforts, our innovative techgglantroduction of new produc
and, when necessary, litigation. We continue tiu$oon methods of upgrading our manufacturing déifyaland efficiency in order to redu
costs.

Effective July 12, 2010, we entered into a settlehagreement with Abbott Laboratories (“Abbott"ndaHospira, Inc. (“Hospirg”
Pursuant to this settlement agreement, we rece$@enhillion in the third quarter of 2010 and Abbuthived its rights to a marketing fee
$1,419,760 and any Series IV Class B preferreckstioddends. Additionally, we granted Hospira awtlesive oneyear option to negotiate
licensing agreement for certain uses of our Paaie® syringe. It has not exercised its option. Astpérthe option fee, we have recei
from Hospira two payments of $2 million each in foerth quarter of 2010 and first quarter of 20hH &xpect another two payments o
million each in the second and third quarters dfl20or a total of $8 million.

We and Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder and CEO, eniteieed Technology License Agreement dated effectis of the 23rd day
June 1995, whereby Mr. Shaw granted us a worldwiigusive license to manufacture, market, sell, distfibute ‘Licensed Productsinc
‘Improvements’ until the expiration of the last dansed Patentsinless sooner terminated under certain conditiatisowt right to sublicenst
‘Licensed Products’, ‘Improvements’, and ‘Licendeatents’are all terms that are extensively defined in teehhology License Agreement
amended. In exchange, we paid a $500,000 initehsing fee and a 5% royalty on gross sales aftieirns of ‘Licensed ProductsSes
“Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, and ProprietariitRidor a more detailed discussion.

Financial Information

Please see the financial statement#tém 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Datdor information about our revenu
profits and losses for the last three years, atad &3sets for the last two years.

Principal Products

Our products with Notice of Substantial Equivaletzéhe U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDAghd which are currently sc
include the 1mL tuberculin; insulin; allergy antig&/anishPoint® syringes; 2mL, 3mL, 5mL, and 10mLnihPoint® syringes; th
VanishPoint® blood collection tube holder; the \&ufoint® 1V safety catheter; small diameter tubapaet; and the Patient Safesyringe.
We are also selling autodisable syringes in therinational market in addition to our other products

In the August 2007 issue éfealth Devices , ECRI listed the VanishPoifftsyringe as one of two syringes with the highestsitde
rating.

Syringe sales comprised 98.6%; 98.9%; and 97.3féwanues in 2008, 2009, and 2010.

Principal Markets

Our products are sold to and used by healthcanadis primarily in the U.S. (with 18.3% of revesua 2010 generated from se
outside the U.S.) which include, but are not lidite, acute care hospitals, alternate care faslitdoctorsboffices, clinics, emergency cente
surgical centers, convalescent hospitals, Vetefaministration facilities, military organizationpublic health facilities, and prisons. Sale
the international market continue to grow.

The syringe and needle device market continueseta Imarket in transition. The nature of the préslwomprising the market
graduallychanging from standard to safety devices. The fogpfor the change to safety devices is the rigk ihcarried with each needles
injury which includes the transmission of over 206dadborne pathogens, including the human immunocisgfcy virus (“HIV,” which cause
AIDS), hepatitis B, and hepatitis C. Because @f dlecupational and public health hazards posedhyantional disposable syringes, pu
health policy makers, domestic organizations, aodegnment agencies have been involved in the effoget more effective safety nee
products to healthcare workers. Federal legisiatvas signed into law on November 6, 2000, by forRresident William Jefferson Clinto
This legislation, which became effective for mdstes on




April 12, 2001, now requires safety needle prodbetsised for the vast majority of procedures. Hmreeven with this requirement, hospi
are neglecting to follow the law intended to proteealthcare workers.

Methods of Marketing and Distribution

Under the current supply chain system in the UcBteacare market, the vast majority of decisionatireg to the contracting for a
purchasing of medical supplies are made by theesgmtatives of group purchasing organizations (“€P@ther than the endsers of th
product (nurses, doctors, and testing personritle GPOs and large manufacturers often enter artgterm exclusive contracts which ¢
prohibit or limit entry in the marketplace by contips.

We distribute our products throughout the U.S. #rdterritories through general line and specialtgtributors. We also utili:
international distributors. We have developed tonal direct marketing network in order to market products to health care customers
their purchaser representatives. Our marketersencaktact with all of the departments that afféxe tecisionmaking process for safe
products, including the purchasing agents. Thdlyoteacute care and alternate care sites and sfieadtly with the decisiomrakers of thes
facilities. We employ trained clinicians, includirregistered nurses and/or medical technologisi$ #uucate healthcare providers
healthcare workers on the use of safety devicemugitr onsite clinical training, exhibits at related tradesls, and publications of relevi
articles in trade journals and magazines. Thesgesrovide clinical support to customers. Initdald to marketing our products, the netw
demonstrates the safety and cost effectivenessedfanishPoin® automated retraction products staruers.

In the needle and syringe market, the market sleager, BD, has utilized, among other things, Iterga exclusive contracts whi
have restricted our entry into the market. Othedte related products manufactured by us thabeireg denied market access as a resi
BD'’s anti-competitive actions include the IV safeptheters and blood collection tube holders.

We have numerous agreements with organizationshiordistribution of our products in foreign markeffhe recognition for tt
urgency of safe needle devices in parts of Eurggefbllowed the U.S. model. The European Hospital Healthcare EmployerA'ssociatiol
(HOSPEEM) and the European Federation of Publigi&es Union (EPSU) have entered into an agreenoeln¢lp prevent needlestick injur
among hospital staff. The European Commissionis$gged a proposal for a council directive to impdamthe agreement. Regions wil
Asia, South America, Australia, and Africa are alsocognizing the need for our products.

Key components of our strategy to increase our ataskare are to: (a) defeat monopolistic practihesugh litigation; (b) focus ¢
methods of upgrading our manufacturing capabilitgl afficiency in order to enable us to reduce castsimprove profit margins; (c) contir
marketing emphasis in the U.S.; (d) continue to ¥dterans Administration facilities, health depagtits, emergency medical services, fec
prisons, longerm care, and home healthcare facilities as custeinte) educate healthcare providers, insuregdthuare workers, governmi
agencies, government officials, and the generalipuam the reduction of risk and the cost effeatigess afforded by our products; (f) sug
product through GPOs and Integrated Delivery Nektwornhere possible; (g) consider possibilities fatufe licensing agreements and |
venture agreements for the manufacture and disivibwf safety products in the U.S. and abroadir{trtpduce new products; and (i) incre
international sales.

Status of Publicly Announced New Products

We have patented and are in the process of dewgi@uiditional safety medical products which havetgde announced.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

We purchase most of our product components fromleisuppliers, including needle adhesives and gacgamaterials. There ¢
multiple sources of these materials. We own thédmthat are used to manufacture the plastic coewusnof our products in the U.S. (
current suppliers include Magor Mold, Inc., Helielical (formerly APEC), Channel Prime Alliance, EtaSpring Corporation, Sterigeni
and Kovacmed.




Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, and Proprietarytfigh

We and Mr. Shaw entered into a Technology LicengeeAment dated effective as of the 23rd day of Ju885 (the Technolog
License Agreement”), whereby Mr. Shaw granted us a..worldwide exclusive license and right under th&censed Patents’anc
‘Information’, to manufacture, market, sell andtdisute ‘Licensed Products’ and ‘Improvementgthout right to sublicense and subjec
such nonexclusive rights as may be possessed bifatleral Government...”. ‘Licensed Patents’, ‘Infation’, ‘Licensed Productsanc
‘Improvements’ are all defined extensively in the Technology LeenAgreement. We may enter into sublicensing gemrents wit
Mr. Shaw’s written approval of the terms and coiod of the licensing agreement. The ‘LicenseddBets’ include all retractable syring
and retractable fluid sampling devices and comptntirereof, assembled or unassembled, which coenprisnvention described ihitensel
Patents’, and improvements thereto including any @h‘Products’ which employ the inventive conceigclosed or claimed in th&itenset
Patents’. We and Mr. Shaw entered into the First Amendmerifgchnology Agreement July 3, 2008, whereby we aledrthe Technolog
License Agreement in order to include certain add#l patent applications (addressing rsyminge patents) owned by Mr. Shaw to
definition of “Patent Propertiesds set forth in the Technology License Agreementhabsuch additional patent applications wouldbeeret
by the license granted by Mr. Shaw to us.

In exchange for the Technology License Agreememthegotiated a licensing fee and agreed to pay aoy#dty on gross sales af
returns. The license terminates upon expiratiotheflast licensed patents unless sooner terminatddr certain circumstances. The licen
fees have been paid in accordance with this agneewith the exception of $1,500,000 in fees whickrevwaived in 2002 and $1,000,00
fees which were waived in 2009.

We have the right and obligation to obtain protattof the inventions, including prosecution of péteroperties. The licen
unilaterally changes to a nonexclusive licensehndvent of a hostile takeover. Also, if Mr. Shiawoluntarily loses control of the Compa
the license becomes a nonexclusive license arghatd information.

We seek foreign patent protection through the Ramoperation Treaty and have filed applicationsrémgional and national pat:
protection in selected countries where we beliawepooducts can be utilized most.

We hold numerous U.S. patents related to our autmnaetraction technology, including patents fordafety catheters, winged
sets, syringes, dental syringes, and blood cofiedtibe holders. In addition, we have multiplelaagions for patents currently pending. -
principal syringe patent in the U.S., as well asfitreign counterpart, will expire in May 2015. Wave also registered the following tr
names and trademarks: VanishPdint , VanishPbilttgos, RT with a circle mark, the Spiral Logo usegackaging our products, and
color coded spots on the ends of our syringes.al&ehave trademark protection for the phrase ‘Nbae Standard for Safety.”

We are involved in patent litigation detailedliam 3. Legal Proceedings We have decided, on the advice of patent counseltc
purchase patent insurance because it would rempappropriate disclosure of information that isremtly proprietary and confidential.

In 2010 we obtained roughly 64.1% of our finishedducts through Double Dove, a Chinese manufactuvée believe we cou
make up any longerm disruption in these supplies by utilizing maoifethe capacity at the Little EIm facility, exceforr 0.5mL, autodisabl
5mL, and 10mL syringes which comprised about 8.4%uo 2010 revenues.

Seasonality

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelagiart of the year due, in part, to the demandyoinges during the flu season. In
third quarter of 2009, we were awarded a contrgdhb Department of Health and Human Services (“I3¥Ho supply a portion of the safi
engineered syringes to be used in the U.S. effortsccinate the U.S. population against the Swilbe The impact on us was materia
2009. Sales to the DHHS comprised 24.4% of ouemaes for the twelve months ended December 31,.2009
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Working Capital Practices

Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted araglinvestments with original maturities of threenths or less.

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custom@us.allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that arétéflduof collection are included in t
allowance. An additional allowance has been eistaddl based on a percentage of receivables outstan@hese provisions are reviewet
determine the adequacy of the allowance for doulstfgounts. Trade receivables are charged off where is certainty as to their be
uncollectible. Trade receivables are considerdidgleent when payment has not been made withinraonterms.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or regrlith cost being determined using actual avecageé The Company compares
average cost to the market price and records therlgalue. Management considers such factorseaarttount of inventory on hand and in
distribution channel, estimated time to sell sunkentory, the shelf life of inventory, and curremarket conditions when determining exces
obsolete inventories. A reserve is establishe@fgrexcess or obsolete inventories or they mayriiten off.

Receivables are established for federal and statestwhere we have determined we are entitled refuand for overpayments
estimated taxes or loss carrybacks.

Accounts payable and other shtetm liabilities include amounts that we believe ave an obligation for at the end of year. T
included charges for goods or services received0ib0 but not billed to us at the end of the yelaralso included estimates of poten
liabilities such as rebates and other fees.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providdsat a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artiv the distributoss facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipca We will not accept returned goods withouetrned goods authorization number.
may refund the customer’s money or replace theumrid

Our domestic return policy also provides that a@@uer may return product that is overstocked. &teeking returns are limited
two times in each 12 month period up to 1% of dhstor’s total purchase of products for the prior 12 mgehod upon the following terms
an “overstocked” product is that portion of distribr’'s inventory of the product which exceeds disttor's sales volume for the product dul
the preceding four months; ii) distributor must have taken delivery of the product which is ovarked during the preceding four months
overstocked product held by distributor in exces$2months from the date of original invoice wilbt be eligible for return; iv) the prod
must have an expiration date of at least 24 mdintims the date of return; v) the overstocked produuast be returned to us in our saleable
cartons which are unopened and untampered, withraken or retaped seals; vi) distributor will be granted a dradich may be used only
purchase other products from us, the credit tanktbeé amount of the invoice price of the returneatipct less a 10% restocking fee which
be assessed against distribidosubsequent purchase of product; vii) distributarst obtain an authorization code from our distidn
department and affix the code to the returned prthdnd viii) distributor shall bear the cost ofggting the returned products to us. All proc
overstocks and returns are subject to inspectidreaneptance by us.

Our international contracts do not provide for agtyrns.

Dependence on Major Customers

Three customers accounted for an aggregate of 38f@%r revenue in 2010. We have numerous othgtoawers and distributors tl
sell our products in the U.S. and internationally.




Backlog Orders

Order backlog is not material to our business inadmas orders for our products generally are receand filled on a current ba
except for items temporarily out of stock.

Government Funding of Research and Right to License

Thomas J. Shaw developed his initial version oafety syringe with the aid of grants by the Natiohmestitute of Drug Abuse,
subsidiary of the National Institutes of Healths &result, the federal government has the righerevthe public interest justifies it, to dispt
the technology to multiple manufacturers so that éarly version of a safety syringe could be madttely available to the public. Howev
the earlier design of 1991 was a bulkier, lessctiffe, and more expensive version of the currentisfePoint® syringe product. According!
Management believes that the risk of the governmemanding manufacture of this alternative prodsiatinimal. The VanishPoirft syringe
design was only partly funded with grant money #mel product, as sold, incorporates technology fbictv the government has no rigr
Therefore the government has no right to allow isthe manufacture the VanishPofht  syringe.

Government Approval and Government Regulations

For all products manufactured for sale in the ddinesarket we have given notice of intent to matiethe FDA and the devices w
shown to be substantially equivalent to the pradidgvices for the stated intended use.

For all products manufactured for sale in the fgmenarket, we hold a certificate of Quality Systeempliance with ISO 13485. \
also have approval to label products for sale Edioopean Union countries with a CE Mark. We widhtinue to comply with the regulatc
regulations of all countries in which our produats registered for sale.

Competitive Conditions

Our products are sold to and used by healthcanddmns primarily in the U.S. (with 18.3% of revesua 2010 generated from se
outside the U.S.) which include, but are not lidite, acute care hospitals, alternate care falitiloctorsbffices, clinics, emergency cente
surgical centers, convalescent hospitals, Vetefansinistration facilities, military organizationpublic health facilities, and prisons.

We compete primarily on the basis of product penfamce and quality. We believe our competitive athges include, but are |
limited to, our leadership in quality and innovati®e believe our products continue to be the rafisttive safety devices in todaymarket
Our syringe products include passive safety adtimatrequire less disposal space, and are actiwakgle in the patient, virtually eliminati
exposure to the contaminated needle. Our priceipigis competitive or even lower than the contationce all the costs incurred during
life cycle of a syringe are considered. Such lifele costs include disposal costs, testing andrreat costs for needlestick injuries,
treatment for contracted illnesses through needdlestjuries. We sued Occupational and Medicalowetions Limited (“OMI”)in April 200¢€
and separately sued BD in June 2007 for claimsatérg infringement (Sekem 3. Legal Proceedingsfor BD case information), and
March 2010 and May 2010, respectively, the prodwétsuch companies were found to infringe our paterThese judgments may h
increased demand for our product.

We have two major domestic competitors, BD and Giewi Ltd. (“Covidien”). BD, Terumo Medical Corp‘Terumo”), and B Brau
are international competitors.

Founded in 1897, BD is headquartered in New Jer8&y's safety-engineered device sales accountedgproximately 23% of B¥
total 2010 sales. Included as safetgineered devices manufactured by BD are the &afletV, a syringe that utilizes a tubular plastieath
that must be manually slid over the needle afteingttion, and the SafetyGlide™, a needle whidlizes a hinged lever to cover the net
tip. BD also manufactures a safety blood collecénd hypodermic needle that utilizes the Eclipsed#dle cover. BD also manufactured
Integra 3mL and 1mL (the 1mL has been taken ofitlagket) retracting needle product based on adeagreement with Specialized Health
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Products International, Inc. (formerly the MBésign Corporation). The Integra, a retractablingg offered by BD, was the subject produt
a patent infringement case found in our favor. B&@ 3. Legal Proceedings BD’s “Vacutainer® "blood collection products are comma
used as industry jargon to refer to blood collecpooducts in general.

Terumo manufactures standard syringes, blood dmlledube holders, safety syringes, and blood ctitée@ devices. It operat
internationally and has sales in more than 150 &

Both BD’s SafetyLok™ and Covidien’s Monoje®tsafety syringes require the use of two hands anerakextra steps to activate
tubular plastic shield which must be slid and latketo place to protect the needle. These productst be removed from the patient pric
activation, resulting in exposure to the contairteédaneedle. In contrast, use of the VanishP®istyringe is identical to that of a stanc
syringe until the end of an injection, when theoauated retraction mechanism retracts the needéettirfrom the patient safely into the ba
of the syringe. This allows both hands to remaifely out of harms way. If the Integra 3mL syringe is removed friita market, VanishPoi
®will be the only fully passive retractable syringging manufactured in commercial quantities inhs.

BD and Covidien have controlling U.S. market shape=ater financial resources; larger and more bskedal sales, marketing,
distribution organizations; and greater marketuafice, including longerm and/or exclusive contracts. The current diovtd have restricte
competition in the needle and syringe market. B&yrbe able to use its resources to improve itsymtsdthrough research or acquisition
develop new products, which may compete more éffgtwith our products.

We continue to attempt to gain access to the maketigh our sales efforts, our innovative techgglantroduction of new produc
and, when necessary, litigation. We continue tusoon methods of upgrading our manufacturing déifyaland efficiency in order to redu
costs.

Our safety needle products have an advantage averatracting safety needles because minimal trgiahd changes to practitioners’
normal routines are required. Use of our prodws® prohibits unfortunate and improper reuse. eBdvfactors could materially a
beneficially affect the marketability of our prodsic Demand could be increased by existing legisiaand other legislative and investiga
efforts. Licensing agreements could provide ety new markets and generate additional reverugther, outsourcing arrangements ci
increase our manufacturing capacity with littlenorcapital outlay and provide a competitive cost.

Two well-established companies control most of the U.S. etarOur competitive position is also weakened ly tmethod thi
providers use for making purchasing decisions hrddct that our initial price per unit for our ebf needle products may be higher.

Research and Development

We spent $1,066,068; $1,030,622; and $885,445s¢affi2008, 2009, and 2010 respectively, on reseamdhdevelopment. Costs
2010 were primarily for compensation costs anddeion costs. Our ongoing research and development activitiepartormed by an interr
research and development staff. This team of eeginis developing process improvements for cuimadtfuture automated machines.
limited access to the market has slowed the intthdion of products. Possible future products inelather needle medical devices to whict
automated retraction mechanism can be applied hssvether safety medical devices.

Environmental Compliance

We believe that we do not incur material costs amnection with compliance with environmental lawd/e are considered
Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator bessawe generate less than 100 kilograms (220 Idshapardous waste per mon
Therefore, we are exempt from the reporting requénets set forth by the Texas Commission on Enviemtal Quality. The waste thai
generated at our facility is primarily made up lainimable liquids and paimelated waste and is sent for fuel blending by Gaféeen. Thi:
fuel blending process completely destroys our wastesatisfies our “cradle-to-grave” responsibility
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Other nonhazardous production waste includes ge&ipropylene regrind that is recycled. All otmemhazardous waste produce
considered municipal solid waste and sent to aagrliandfill by Waste Management.

We also produce small amounts of regulated biollazer waste from contaminated sharps and laboratasfes. This waste is s
for incineration by Stericycle.

Employees

As of March 1, 2011, we had 159 employees. 15uoh employees were full time employees.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

We have minimal londived assets in foreign countries. Shipments terimational customers generally require a prepaymigmer b
wire transfer or an irrevocable confirmed lettercoédit. We do extend credit to international oustrs on some occasions depending
certain criteria, including, but not limited to etleredit worthiness of the customer, the stabdityhe country, banking restrictions, and the
of the order. All transactions are in U.S. curgeniVe attribute sales to countries based on tkérdgion of shipment.

2010 2009 2008

U.S. sale: $ 29,577,05 $ 34,466,79 $ 23,244,37
North and South America sales (excluding U 4,887,07. 1,764,58. 937,69¢
Other international sale 1,755,43! 2,750,45! 3,717,25!
Total sales $ 36,219,56 $ 38,981,83 $ 27,899,31
Long-lived asset:

u.S. $ 12,297,994  $ 13,961,444 $ 14,435,66

International $ 262,65( $ 272,73t $ —

Most international sales are filled by productiooni Double Dove. In the event that we become wntbpurchase such product fr
Double Dove, we would need to find an alternatepfiapfor the 0.5mL insulin syringe, the 0.5mL aditable syringe, and the 5mL and 1(
syringes. We would increase domestic productiorife 1mL and 3mL syringes to avoid a disruptiosupply.

Available Information

We make available, free of charge on our websitevjwanishpoint.com), our Form 10-K Annual Reportdform 10Q Quarterl
reports and current reports on Form 8-K (and angraiments to such reports) as soon as reasonallycptafter such reports are filed.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

You should carefully consider the following matériaks facing us. If any of these risks occurf business, results of operations
financial condition could be materially affected.

We Compete in a Monopolistic Marketplace

We operate in an environment that is dominated Dy tBe major syringe manufacturer in the U.S. Végelve that its monopolist
business practices continue despite: (i) its pasib@0 million in 2004 to settle a prior lawsuit itis for anticompetitive practices, busir
disparagement, and tortious interference andh@)faict that its Integra products were found teoimgfe our products in May 2010. The Coart’
injunction in this case was stayed pending app&dé have also sued BD alleging violations of amstracts, false advertising, proc
disparagement, tortious interference, and unfainpetition. This suit is scheduled to be tried onuzay 10, 2012.
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Although we have made limited progress in somesareach as the alternate care and internationadetgrour volumes are not
high as they should be given the nature and quaflibur products and the federal and state legislaequiring the use of safe needle devices.

We Have Generally Been Unable to Gain SufficientidaAccess to Achieve Profitable Operations

We have a history of incurring net operating lossége may experience operating losses in the futlreve are unable to gz
sufficient market access and market share, we reaynhble to continue to finance research and dpnedat as well as support operations
expansion of production.

We Are Dependent On Our Aging Patent Protection

Our main competitive strength is our technologye We dependent on our patent rights, and if otenpaights are invalidated
circumvented, our business would be adversely tftecPatent protection is considered, in the aggges to be of material importance in
marketing of products in the U.S. and in most mdgoeign markets. Patents covering products thathave introduced normally prov
market exclusivity, which is important for the sassful marketing and sale of our products.

As our technology ages (and the associated pafergXpires), our competitive position in the magtace will weaken. The initi
patents protecting our revolutionary spring actigminge will expire beginning in May 2015. Patdifée may be extended, not through
original patents, but through related improvemei@sir ability to improve these patents is uncertdiventually, however, our patent protec
may decrease and we will be vulnerable to othemaiitors utilizing our technology.

Our Patents Are Subject to Litigation

We were involved in two patent disputes both ofakhivere found in our favor in 2010. A final appél decision in one such sui
anticipated to occur in 2011. Further, we haventmesd by BD and MDC for patent infringement. 8em 3. Legal Proceedinggor more
information. Patent litigation and challenges involving our pédeare costly and unpredictable and may deprivef msarket exclusivity for
patented product or, in some cases, third pargnpgimay prevent us from marketing and sellingoayet in a particular geographic area.

We Are Vulnerable to New Technologies

Because we have a narrow focus on particular ptdéhwees and technology (currently predominantlyaetable needle products),
are vulnerable to the development of superior camgeroducts and to changes in technology whialdeliminate or reduce the need for
products. If a superior technology is created déwmand for our products could greatly diminish.

Our Competitors Have Greater Resources

Our competitors have greater financial resourcagelr and more established sales and marketinglistribution organizations, a
greater market influence, including lotgrm contracts. These competitors may be ablseadhese resources to improve their products tim
research and acquisitions or develop new prodwdigsh may compete more effectively with our productf our competitors choose to
their resources to create products superior to, amesmay be unable to sell our products and oulit@ghdo continue operations would
weakened.

The Majority of Our International Sales Are Fillelding One Supplier

Most international sales are filled by productiooni Double Dove. In the event that we become wntbpurchase such product fr
Double Dove, we would need to find an alternatepiapfor the 0.5mL insulin syringe,
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the 0.5mL autodisable syringe, and the 5mL and 1@gringes. We would increase domestic productamttie 1mL and 3mL syringes
avoid a disruption in supply. As of December 301@ approximately 64.1% of our production was fied by Double Dove. 18.3% of ¢
sales in 2010 were international.

Fluctuations in Supplies of Inventory Could Tempiydncrease Costs

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawterals and inventory and the ability to mainta@wdrable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactll (as opposed to 33.4%) of the products indt® This could temporarily increase |
costs as we ramp up domestic production.

We Are Controlled by One Shareholder

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and Chairman of dadBowns 32.1% of the outstanding Common Stocéfddarch 1, 2011 ar
beneficially owns an additional 15.8% with Ms. Suze August. 2,800,000 of such beneficially ownédres held by Ms. August i
controlled by Mr. Shaw pursuant to a Voting Agreemevhich terminates upon sale of all the sharesdtue or if terminated by both partie:
writing. Mr. Shaw will, therefore, have the ahjlito direct our operations and financial affairgldn substantially influence the electior
members of our Board of Directors. His interestsymmot always coincide with our interests or theeriests of other stockholders. 1
concentration of ownership, for example, may hawe éffect of delaying, deferring, or preventingtemge in control, impeding a mer¢
consolidation, takeover, or other business comhmnahvolving us, or discouraging a potential acguirom making a tender offer or otherw
attempting to obtain control of us, which in turoutd materially adversely affect the market priéeor Common Stock. Of the 23,988,
shares of Common Stock outstanding as of Marcl®1] 2executive officers, affiliates, and Directorgn or control 11,537,250 (48.1%) of
shares of outstanding Common Stock, not includingn@on Stock equivalents such as preferred shacks@ions.

We Have Limited Access to the Capital Markets

The volume of trading in our Common Stock on theSEYAmex LLC (“NYSE Amex”) formerly the American Stock Exchange
low. Accordingly, it is unclear if there is anygsificant market for our shares. This may reduae ability to raise cash through public
private offerings in the future.

Our Stock Price Is Low

Our stock price may be deemed to have been séfiim@g substantial period of time at a low price phare”which may result in o1
receipt of a notification from the NYSE Amex thateverse split is necessary. We have receiveduch sotification. When a compe
receives such a notification, failure to effecteaarse stock split may result in suspension or x@nfsom trading on the NYSE Amex. T
NYSE Amex may initiate delisting procedures indiscretion. Delisting of our shares would greatffiect the liquidity of our shares and wa
reduce our ability to raise funds from the saleeqgfiity in the future. However, we believe suchidliely application to be unlikel
Furthermore, in the event that we receive a defayjeetter from the NYSE Amex, we will have thehigo appeal such determination.
addition, entities that were given such noticesanritdle NYSE Amex standards were generally givemoup to 18 months to execute a pla
bring themselves into compliance with the listitgslards.

Current Economic Conditions May Decrease Colletitylmnf Accounts

Although we believe that we have granted creditreditworthy firms, current economic conditions may afféwe timing and/c
collectability of some accounts. The allowancedoubtful accounts increased by $98,934 for 201izhvhrings the balance to $780,900.
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We Face Inherent Product Liability Risks

As a manufacturer and provider of safety needleyxts, we face an inherent business risk of exgosuproduct liability claims. If
product liability claim is made and damages arexoess of our product liability coverage, our cotitppe position could be weakened by
amount of money we could be required to pay to emmpte those injured by our products. We haveyatdébility coverage with Travele
Property and Casualty covering up to $11,000,00(@peurrence, with coverage up to $11,000,000 énatpgregate. Each claim is subject
$25,000 deductible.

In the event of a recall, we do not have recalliiaace.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable and none.
Item 2. Properties.

Our 22,500 square foot headquarters is located htL®bo Lane, on 35 acres, which we own, overlogkiake Lewisville in Little
Elm, Texas. The headquarters are in good conditimhhouse our administrative offices and manufaafacility. The manufacturing facili
produced approximately 33.4% of the units that weranufactured in 2010. We placed a 47,250 squaoé Warehouse in service
March 2005 and expanded it (by an additional 47280 in 2009. In the event of a disruption imvéee of our outside supplier, Double Da
we believe we could produce quantities sufficientrteet demand under current circumstances excepiefoand for 0.5mL, 5mL, and 101
syringes. In that event, we would attempt to eegagother manufacturer. The 5mL and 10mL syrirgessold principally in the internatiol
market. In 2010, we utilized approximately 60% af ourrent U.S. productive capacity.

On August 29, 2008, we obtained a $4,210,000 loam fLewisville State Bank, a division of 1st Intational Bank. The purpose
the loan was to expand the warehouse, includingiaddl office space, and construct a new Conttblvironment. The loan was renewet
December 10, 2009 with a 20 year amortization ahgelr maturity. The interest rate is 5.968%. @twastruction project has been completed.

In the opinion of Management, the property and gaeint are suitable for their intended use and dexj@ately covered by
insurance policy.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

In June 2010, BOiled an appeal in the U.S. Court of Appeals fog frederal Circuit appealing a final judgment erdesa May 1€
2010 for us and against B®'counterclaims in patent litigation. Such finadlgment ordered that we recover $5,000,000 plugiggenen
interest, and ordered a permanent injunction forSBDmL and 3mL Integra syringes until the expiratadncertain patents. The permar
injunction was stayed for the longer of the exhiansof the appeal of the district cowgttase or twelve months from May 19, 2010. Brg
for the appeal has been completed and oral argutneRtplace March 10, 2011. At this time, a fimkdcision by the appellate cour
anticipated to occur in 2011.

In May 2010, our and an officer’suit against BD in the U.S. District Court foe tBastern District of Texas, Marshall Division gltgg
violations of antitrust acts, false advertisingpguct disparagement, tortious interference, an@iumbmpetition was reopened. We ant
officer filed a Second Amended Complaint on July 2310 setting forth additional detail regarding #ilegations of BL¥ illegal conduct. B
filed a motion to dismiss and the Court denied thation in part and granted it in part, grantingthus right to replead certain allegations
May 13, 2011. A scheduling conference was heldasruary 31, 2011 and a trial date was set for Jgarig 2012.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holditgs, (“MDC”) sued us in the United States District Court for Heester
District of Texas, Texarkana Division, initiallylegjing that we are infringing two U.S. patents ob® (6,179,812 and 7,090,656) that
licensed to BD. BD and MDC seek injunctive religfdaunspecified damages. We counterclaimed foradatibns of norinfringement
invalidity, and unenforceability of the assertedepés. The plaintiffs subsequently dropped alliegat with regard to patent no. 7,090,656
we subsequently dropped our counterclaims for wreafbility of the asserted patents. The Courtinoted a claims construction
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hearing on September 25, 2008 and issued its cledmstruction order on November 14, 2008. A tlae has been set for February 14, 2012.
PART I
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases ofdtity Securities.
MARKET INFORMATION
Our Common Stock has been listed on the NYSE Ammdenithe symbol “RVP%Since May 4, 2001. Our closing price on Marc

2011, was $1.61 per share. Shown below are the dmgl low sales prices of our Common Stock as tegdry the NYSE Amex for ea
quarter of the last two fiscal years:

2010 High Low
Fourth Quarte $1.9: $1.3¢
Third Quartel $1.8¢ $0.8:
Second Quarte $1.8( $1.2(
First Quartel $2.0: $1.31

2009 High Low
Fourth Quarte $2.1: $1.3¢
Third Quartel $2.9¢ $0.6¢
Second Quarte $0.9¢ $0.6(
First Quartel $0.9( $0.4:

SHAREHOLDERS

As of March 1, 2011, there were 23,988,414 shafgSommmon Stock held by 255 shareholders of recatdintluding shareholde
who beneficially own Common Stock held in nomineéstreet name.”

DIVIDENDS
We have not ever declared or paid any dividendthenCommon Stock. We have no current plans togmgycash dividends on 1
Common Stock. We intend to retain all earninggeex those required to be paid to the holders efftfeferred Stock as resources allov

support operations and future growth. Dividends @smmon Stock cannot be paid so long as preferiedleshds are unpaid. As
December 31, 2010, there was an aggregate of $ii8i6n in preferred dividends in arrears.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Seeltem 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Omers and Management and Related Stockholder Matterfor a char
describing compensation plans under which equityisiges are authorized.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH
The following graph compares the cumulative togalm for our Common Stock from December 31, 2@0Bécember 31, 2010, to -
total returns for the Russell Microc& and Becbitkinson and Company (or “BDX"j peer issuer. The graph assumes an investrr
$100 in the aforementioned equities as of Decer@beP005, and that all dividends are reinvested.
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RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

None.

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND RIEIATED PURCHASERS

No repurchases were made in the fourth quarte®d2
Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data is qualifiegt reference to, and should be read in conjunctiith, our audited financi
statements and the notes to those statements andgelmens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord desults of Operatio
appearing elsewhere herein. The selected Statsrméfperations data presented below for the yeaded December 31, 2007 and 2006
the Balance Sheet data as of December 31, 2008, 200 2006 have been derived from our auditechéii@ statements, which are
included herein.

(In thousands except for earnings per share, shamdspercentages)*

As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Sales, ne $ 36,21¢ % 38,98: $ 27,89¢ $ 26,29( $ 20,897
Reimbursed discoun — — — — 4,42
Total sales 36,21¢ 38,98: 27,89¢ 26,29( 25,32¢
Cost of sale: 23,81t 25,46¢ 19,67 18,30( 17,77¢
Gross profil 12,40 13,51¢ 8,22¢ 7,99( 7,54¢
Total operating expens 19,18¢ 26,81: 18,67! 17,93¢ 14,26!
Loss from operation (6,787) (13,296 (20,449 (9,946 (6,715
Interest incom: 32 58 85E 1,87( 1,97¢
Interest expense, n (302) (22 (54) (326) (411)
Litigation settlements, nt 9,27¢ — — — —
Income (loss) before income tax 2,22t (13,260) (9,644 (8,402 (5,150
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As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Benefit for income taxe (176) (3,83%) — (1,45 (1,280
Net income (loss 2,401 (9,427) (9,649 (6,94¢) (3,870
Preferred Stock dividend requireme (1,377) (1,379) (1,379 (1,399 (1,457
Earnings (loss) applicable to common sharehol $ 103C ¢ (10,79) ¢ (1101) s (834) $ (5,32)
Earnings (loss) per sha— basic $ 0.04 $ (0.45) $ (0.46) $ (0.35) $ (0.27)
Earnings (loss) per sha— diluted $ 0.04 ¢ 0.45) 3 (0.4 s 039 s (0.29)
Weighted average shares outstan— basic 23,872,78 23,806,533 23,794,56 23,727,02 23,591,99
Weighted average shares outstan— diluted 26,248,87. 23,806,53 23,794,56 23,727,02 23,591,99
Current assel $ 40,22¢ % 39,26: $ 43,61¢ % 51,91¢ $ 57,78:
Current liabilities $ 9,98¢ $ 13,19¢ % 10,23¢ % 8,78t $ 6,891
Property, plant, and equipment, | $ 12,567 $ 14,23:  $ 14,43t $ 11,48: $ 12,21
Total asset $ 53,191 $ 53,94 $ 58,53¢ $ 64,33( $ 70,79t
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti $ 4,30¢ % 4,82t % 6,09¢ $ 3,741 % 4,13
Stockholder equity $ 38,90 $ 3592( $ 42,20¢ $ 51,767 $ 59,71(
Redeemable Preferred Stock (in sha 2,279,011 2,285,26! 2,285,26! 2,329,911 2,441,161
Cash dividends per common sh $ — % — % — 3 — 3 —
Gross profit margit 34.2% 34. % 29.5% 30.2% 29.8%
* Events that could affect the tremtlicated above include continued reductions in ufecturing costs, changirgyerage sales pric

the gaining of market access, and protection ofpatents. We have been successful in protectingatents, most recently against BD
OMI. (Seeltem 3. Legal Proceedinggor BD case information.) As our products are méaden petroleum products, the changing cost ¢
and transportation may have an impact on our dostise extent increases may not be recoverableighrprice increases of our products
reductions in oil prices may not quickly affect gd¢um product prices. Sales to the Departmertiedith and Human Services (“DHHS”
comprised 24.4% of our revenues for the twelve im@einded December 31, 2009, which affects compayaietween 2009 and other yes
Receipt of settlement proceeds and option paymé&ota Abbott and Hospira positively affected 201Guks. Cost cutting measu
implemented at the end of the second quarter 09 20@ an agreement reached in the second quar2&16fwith our litigation counsel to ¢
certain legal fees should both contribute to a lolereel of expenses going forward.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operation.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiagficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs“anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar such words constitute forvkmoking statements within the meaning of the Pavaecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forward{ooking statements involve known and unknown riskacertainties, and other factors that may causeaotual result
performance, or achievements to be materially difie from any future results, performance, or aghieents expressed or implied by s
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amoingrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our maintnce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation, our ability to maiiafavorable supplier arrangements and relatiorsship
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our ability to quickly increase capacity in respens an increase in demand, our ability to acdessrarket, our ability to maintain or lov
production costs, our ability to continue to finanesearch and development as well as operatiahg)gransion of production, the incree
interest of larger market players, specifically BbD,providing devices to the safety market, andeotfactors referenced ittem 1A. Risk
Factors. Given these uncertainties, undue reliance shootidbe placed on forward-looking statements.

OVERVIEW

We have been manufacturing and marketing our ptsdoto the marketplace since 1997. We curremttyioe other safety medic
products in addition to safety syringe productsie@uch product is the Patient S&feyringe, which is uniquely designed to reduce thle o
bloodstream infections resulting from catheter babtamination. Safety syringes comprised 97.3%unfsales in 2010.

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelafiart of the year due, in part, to the demandsjoinges during the flu season.
2009, we had a contract to provide DHHS with syemgo be used in the U.S. efforts to provide swiinevaccinations. This contract w
material for 2009 and affects comparability to 26i@@ncial data.

Our products have been and continue to be dis&tiboationally through numerous distributors. Hogrewe have been blocked fr
access to the market by exclusive marketing prestngaged in by BD, which dominates the markeg. bélieve that its monopolistic busin
practices continue despite: (i) its paying $100lionl in 2004 to settle a prior lawsuit with us fanticompetitive practices, busin
disparagement, and tortious interference andh@)fact that its Integra products were found toimgle our products in May 2010. The Cosirt’
injunction in this case was stayed pending appédithough we have made limited progress in somasreuch as the alternate care
international markets, our volumes are not as kigtthey should be given the nature and qualityuwsfproducts and the federal and ¢
legislation requiring the use of safe needle device

We continue to pursue various strategies to hatterb&ccess to the hospital market, as well asratfzekets, including attempting
gain access to the market through our sales effoutsinnovative technology, introduction of nevagucts, and, when necessary, litigation.
are also marketing more products internationally.

In the event we continue to have only limited markecess and the cash provided by the litigatidtieseents and generated fr
operations becomes insufficient, we would take @aithl cost cutting measures to reduce cash regeinés. Such measures could result ir
reduction of units being produced, the reductiorwofkforce, the reduction of salaries of officersdaother nonhourly employees, and
deferral of royalty payments. We took such actianthe end of the second quarter of 2009.

At the end of the second quarter of 2009, we anoedrthat in the interest of the lotgrm survival of the Company we wo
reorganize some of the Compasyunctions and implement staff reductions, albider to minimize our cash expenditures and comsen
resources. Our workforce was reduced by 16% on1lu2009. However, due to the increase in pradodrom sales to DHHS, we increa
the workforce at the Little EIm facility beginning the latter part of the third quarter of 200%l&8ies for all personnel above a certain si
level were cut by 10% in 2009. Although certaitapareductions remain in place, we granted paysm&mbur employees to offset such se
reductions in 2010. As a result of the cost cgtimeasures, compensation costs for 2010 includedpierating expenses were reduce:
$800,000.

Our litigation costs for 2010 were approximatelyI$Hillion less than the prior year. Additionabtetions in expenses in 201(
compared to 2009 include reductions of $771,000sfock option expense, $178,000 for travel andremtenent, $173,000 for consultii
$77,000 in 401(k) expense, and $48,000 for margetipense.

We are bringing additional molding operations tttleiElm as a cost saving measure. We continuedosf on methods of upgrad
our manufacturing capability and efficiency in artée reduce costs.

Effective July 12, 2010, we entered into a settleinagreement with Abbott and Hospira. Pursuarthi® settlement agreement,
received $6 million in the third quarter of 201@akbbott waived its rights to a
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marketing fee of $1,419,760 and any Series IV CBagseferred stock dividends. Additionally, we gied Hospira an exclusive ogea
option to negotiate a licensing agreement for @eraes of our Patient Safesyringe. It has not exercised its option. Ag péthe option fet
we have received from Hospira two payments of $ianieach in the fourth quarter of 2010 and fiystarter of 2011 and expect another
payments of $2 million each in the second and thurdrters of 2011, for a total of $8 million. Hetthird quarter of 2010, we granted bon
to certain officers and employees in recognitiomvofk leading to the Abbott settlement.

In the second quarter of 2010, we reached an agmtewith our counsel, Locke Lord Bissell & Liddetggarding future litigatic
expenditures that caps certain of our litigatiostsdn exchange for a contingent fee interest. béleeve this agreement serves both our short
term and longerm interests and will reduce the legal fee conepoiof our General and administrative costs antimipact our cash flow in
positive manner.

Product purchases from Double Dove, a Chinese maahugr, have enabled us to increase manufactedpgcity with little capit:
outlay and have provided a competitive manufactugost. In 2010, Double Dove manufactured appratéty 64.1% of the units v
produced. The cost of production per unit has glyedeclined as volumes increased. We believeowdd make up any longrm disruptio
in these supplies by utilizing more of the capaaeityhe Little EIm facility, except for the 0.5mhsulin syringe, the 5mL and 10mL syring
and the autodisable syringe which altogether casegrabout 8.4% of our 2010 revenues.

With increased volumes, our manufacturing unit etstve generally tended to decline. Factors thatdcaffect our unit costs inclu
increases in costs by third party manufacturerangimg production volumes, costs of petroleum petgjuand transportation costs. Increas
such costs may not be recoverable through priceases of our products.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion contains trend informatiand other forwardeoking statements that involve a number of risksl
uncertainties. Our actual future results couldedifnaterially from our historical results of opgoas and those discussed in the forward-
looking statements. All period references areunfiscal years ended December 2010, 2009, or 2@i8lar amounts have been roundec
ease of reading.

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2010 and Year Ended December 31, 2009

Revenues decreased 7.1%, due principally to thecefff the DHHS contract in 2009. Domestic salesen81.7% of revenues w
international sales comprising the remainder. laites decreased 7.4%. Domestic unit sales dedeE88% and average sales pi
increased 3.2%. International unit sales incre&4e®% and average international selling pricesciased.

Cost of sales decreased due to lower volume ofymtosold. Royalty expenses increased due to highess sales as well as
litigation proceeds.

As a result, gross profit margins decreased frorm%4n 2009 to 34.2% in 2010.

Operating expenses decreased 28.4% from the pe@r gue to lower litigation costs, lower compemsaitosts ($800,000), low
stock option expense ($771,000), and lower tramel entertainment costs ($178,000). Our litigatosts for 2010 were approximately ¢
million less than the prior year. Lower litigatioonsts are the result of an agreement betweendisar counsel to cap certain litigation fe
Additional reductions in expenses in 2010 as coegban 2009 include reductions of $173,000 for ctimay $77,000 in 401(k) expense, i
$48,000 for marketing expense.

In 2010, we recognized impairment charges of $35,@r costs associated with research and developastivities compared
impairment charges of $2.6 million in 2009 ass@dawith catheter production equipment.

Operating loss was $6.8 million in 2010 comparedni@perating loss in 2009 of $13.3 million.

Interest income decreased due to lower interess rainterest expense increased due to higherges/ézan balances and a reductio
capitalized interest.

Litigation settlements, net reflects cash proce#d&8.0 million from Hospira and a waiver of $1.4llian in marketing fees payable
Abbott. A receivable from Abbott for $144 thousamds also waived.

Benefit for income taxes consists principally oflaidnal refunds due for our 2009 federal tax retrteduced by $130 thousand du
Alternative Minimum Tax for 2010.

Cash flow from operations was $8.7 million for 2ad@ principally to litigation settlements and imped results from operations.
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Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2009 and Year Ended December 31, 2008

Revenues increased 39.7%, due principally to saleter the DHHS contract. Domestic sales were 88af%evenues wil
international sales comprising the remainder. iththe DHHS contract, our revenues would haveemsed 5.6%, with domestic rever
increasing 7.3% and international revenues dedir8r0%. Unit sales of the 1mL syringe increasedl%/and 3mL unit sales increa
54.3%. Unit sales of all products increased 27.3mestic unit sales as well as average saleg9iitcreased. International unit s
decreased slightly and average selling prices &se@. Sales to two customers accounted for 38f4%raevenues in 2009. Only one of tF
two customers was a customer in 2008, and sucbmestaccounted for 17.1% of our revenues in 2008.

Cost of sales increased due to greater volumegalfyaexpenses were higher due to higher gross.sale
As a result, gross profit margins increased fron529in 2008 to 34.7% in 2009.

Operating expenses increased from the prior yeatallitigation costs and stock option expensegatéd by the cost cutting measi
beginning in the third quarter of 2009.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased due pyirn@ribwer compensation due to staff reduction aeduction in pay, low:
advertising expenses, and reduced travel costek 8ption expense and consulting costs increased.

Research and development costs were lower. Walbakases in engineering costs due principallyetuation in staff and pay
well as lower consulting cost. Stock option exgeimgreased.

General and administrative costs increased dueipghy to litigation costs and stock option expen€ompensation costs decre:
due to staff reductions and reductions in pay.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we recognized andimpent charge of $2,594,602 associated with cathebduction equipment.
Interest income decreased due to lower interess l@bd lower cash balances. Interest expenseadecrdue to capitalized interest.
The Company recognized a tax benefit in 2009 piilsndue to a federal tax carryback related to 2009.

Preferred Stock dividend requirements decreasghttbklidue to conversion of preferred stock in tingt fquarter of 2008. The divide
arrearage at December 31, 2009, on all classesetdrred Stock was approximately $15.3 million.

Cash flow from operations was a negative $12.3onilfor 2009 due principally to operating lossed arcreases in receivables. V
of the increase in receivables was related tonigiliin December 2009 to DHHS and collected in Jan2@10. The increase in income te
receivable was related to a refund for carrybackuwsf2009 net operating loss. We filed for thiunel early in the second quarter of 2010
received the refund in 2010. The effect of maish expenses and the change in working capitabwagative $2.9 million. Investing activit
utilized $2.4 million in cash.

LIQUIDITY

At the present time, Management does not interrdise equity capital. Due to the funds receivednfiprior litigation settlements, \
have sufficient cash reserves and intend to relggmrations, cash reserves, and debt financinigeagrimary ongoing sources of cash.

Our cash position has improved $5.1 million, or428, over 2009. The improvement is directly relaiedhe litigation proceeds p:
in 2010 and the effect of cost reduction measiaksrt in 2009 and 2010. Reduction in litigationtspparticularly from the second quarte
2010 through the end of the year, were significAlie expect these lower litigation costs and tlfiecef the cost reductions to continue.
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Historical Sources of Liquidity

We have historically funded operations primarilgrfr the proceeds from revenues, private placemieass, and litigation settlemer

Internal Sources of Liguidity

Margins and Market Access

To routinely achieve break even quarters, we neitdmal access to hospital markets which has be#itwt to obtain due to tt
monopolistic marketplace which was the subject wf iaitial lawsuit and now also included in our ged antitrust lawsuit against BDWe
will continue to attempt to gain access to the raatkrough our sales efforts, innovative technojage introduction of new products, a
when necessary, litigation.

We continue to focus on methods of upgrading ounufecturing capability and efficiency in order gxluce costs.

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawteréls and inventory and our ability to mainta@tvérable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactll (as opposed to 33.4%) of our products inUt®. This could temporarily increase |
costs as we ramp up domestic production.

The mix of domestic and international sales afféttésaverage sales price of our products. Genethk higher the ratio of domes
sales to international sales, the higher the aeessdes price will be. Typically international eslare shipped directly from China to
customer. Purchases of product manufactured inaChi available, usually decrease the average afostanufacture for all units. Domes
costs, such as indirect labor and overhead, renedatively constant. The number of units produbgdhe Company versus manufacture
China can have a significant effect on the carryogts of inventory as well as Cost of sales. Vileoantinue to evaluate the appropriate
of products manufactured domestically and thoseufie@tured in China to achieve economic benefitsval as to maintain our domes
manufacturing capability.

Fluctuations in the cost of oil (since our produats petroleum based) and transportation and themeoof units purchased frc
Double Dove may have an impact on the unit costauoforoduct. Increases in such costs may noet@verable through price increases of
products. Reductions in oil prices may not quickdfect petroleum product prices.

Seasonality

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelafiart of the year due, in part, to the demandsjoinges during the flu season.
2009, we had a contract to provide DHHS with syemgo be used in the U.S. efforts to provide swiinevaccinations. This contract w
material for 2009 and affects comparability to 26i@@ncial data.

Cash Requirements

Due to funds received from prior litigation settiemts, we have sufficient cash reserves and intemely on operations, cash reser
and debt financing as the primary ongoing souréessh. In the event we continue to have onlytlhimarket access and cash generated
operations becomes insufficient to support openatiave would take additional cost cutting measuceseduce cash requirements. <
measures could result in the reduction of unitswgpgiroduced, the reduction of workforce, the reiducbf salaries of officers and otl
nonhourly employees, and the deferral of royaltyrpents.

External Sources of Liquidity

We have obtained several loans from our inceptidnich have, together with the proceeds from thessaf equities and litigatic
efforts, enabled us to pursue development and ptamfuof our products. Given the
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current economic conditions, our ability to obtadditional funds through loans is uncertain. Femtore, the shareholders previol
authorized an additional 5,000,000 shares of asGlaBreferred Stock that could, if necessary, Isggdated and used to raise funds throug
sale of equity. Due to the current market pricewf Common Stock, it is unlikely we would choogedise funds by the sale of equity.

Effective July 12, 2010, we entered into a settiehegreement with Abbott and Hospira. Pursuanhi® settlement agreement,
received $6 million in the third quarter of 2010daAbbott waived its rights to a marketing fee of 489,760 and any Series IV Clas
preferred stock dividends. Additionally, we grahtdospira an exclusive ongar option to negotiate a licensing agreementéotain uses
our Patient Safé syringe. It has not exercised its option. Adg péthe option fee, we have received from Hospira payments of $2 millic
each in the fourth quarter of 2010 and first quanfe2011 and expect another two payments of $#anikach in the second and third quai
of 2011, for a total of $8 million.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Material Commitments for Expenditures

In March 2011, we purchased four molding machinesxpand our iftouse molding capability and further reduce coltt® purchas
price is $453,000 and financing is expected todyepleted in the second quarter of 2011.

Trends in Capital Resources

Interest expense may increase due to the reduaticapitalized interest at the present time. Iyrakso be affected by additional loi
or rising interest rates. Interest income may oo to be negatively affected by lower interesésaand our prior movement of cash to |
Treasury bills and other U.S. government backedr#tézs. Although we believe that we have granted creditreditworthy firms, currer
economic conditions may affect the timing and/dlextability of some accounts.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

None.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following chart summarizes our material obligas and commitments to make future payments ucaietracts for longerm dek
as of December 31, 2010:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less More
Than 1-3 3-5 Than 5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Contractual Obligations
Long-term debt, including current maturiti $ 484545 $ 537,22: $ 584,030 $ 290,60¢ $ 3,433,59
Operating leas 303,98( 59,19/ 122,00° 122,77¢ —

$ 514943 $ 596,41 $ 706,04( $  413,38' $ 3,433,59.

These amounts do not reflect the effect of the fi@akconversion feature of the note payable tdi&®etroleum and therefore will
greater than the amounts in the financial statesnent
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We consider the following to be our most significaccounting policies. Careful consideration aedigw is given to these and
accounting policies on a routine basis to ensuatttiey are accurately and consistently applied.

Accounts Receivable

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custom@us. allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that arétéflduof collection are included in t
allowance. An additional allowance has been eistaddl based on a percentage of receivables outstan@hese provisions are reviewet
determine the adequacy of the allowance for doulsifgounts. Trade receivables are charged off vthere is certainty as to their be
uncollectible. Trade receivables are considerdidgleent when payment has not been made withinraonterms.

We require certain distributors to make a prepaymeior to beginning production or shipment of theider. Distributors may apg
such prepayments to their outstanding invoicesagrthe invoice and continue to carryforward thead#pfor future orders. Such amounts
included in Other accrued liabilities on the Bakur@heets and are shown in Note 6, Other Accruetilities.

We record an allowance for estimated returns &slaation to accounts receivable and gross salésoridally, returns have been |
than 0.5% of net sales.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales when title and ofshwnership passes to the customer, generally ighgpment. Under certe
contracts, revenue is recorded on the basis of gaiee to distributors, less contractual pricidigv@ances. Contractual pricing allowan
consist of (i) rebates granted to distributors wirovide tracking reports which show, among othéngs, the facility that purchased
products, and (ii) a provision for estimated coctiwal pricing allowances for products that we hawe received tracking reports. Rebates
recorded when issued and are applied against tteroers receivable balance. Distributors receive a eelat the difference between
Wholesale Acquisition Cost and the appropriate ramttprice as reflected on a tracking report predidhy the distributor to us. If produc
sold by a distributor to an entity that has no caxtt there is a standard rebate (lower than aaced rebate) given to the distributor. On
the purposes of the rebate is to encourage distribuo submit tracking reports to us. The provisfor contractual pricing allowances
reviewed at the end of each quarter and adjustedHanges in levels of products for which therenastracking report. Additionally, if
becomes clear that tracking reports will not bevigled by individual distributors, the provisionfigther adjusted. The estimated contrac
allowance is netted against the individual distidois accounts receivable balances for financial ragpgurposes. The resulting net balan:
reflected in accounts receivable or accounts payalsl appropriate. The terms and conditions dfractual pricing allowances are governet
contracts between us and our distributors. Revémushipments directly to endsers is recognized when title and risk of owngrgiasse
from us. Any product shipped or distributed foaksation purposes is expensed.

Certain distributors have taken rebates to whigly re not entitled, such as utilizing a rebatepfaducts not purchased directly fr
us. We have been in discussions with the prinapatomers that claimed naoentractual rebates. Major customers said theg ltaased tt
practices resulting in claiming namntractual rebates. The product for which theyewdaiming rebates was actually product they hai
purchased from us. Rebates can only be claimepuorhases made directly from us. We have establisheeserve for the collectability
these norcontractual rebate amounts. The expense for gerve is recorded in Operating expense, Generabdndnistrative. The resel
for such non-contractual deductions is a reduatioaccounts receivable.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providdsat a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artiv the distributoss facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipca We will not accept returned goods withouetrned goods authorization number.
may refund the customer’s money or replace theumid

Our domestic return policy also provides that a@@uer may return product that is overstocked. &teeking returns are limited
two times in each 12 month period up to 1% of distor’s total purchase of products for the prior 12 mqgughod. All product overstocks &
returns are subject to inspection and acceptance by

Our international distribution agreements do notvjae for any returns.
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Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragriwith cost being determined using actual average. We compare the aver
cost to the market price and record the lower valianagement considers such factors as the anmafumyventory on hand and in t
distribution channel, estimated time to sell suntentory, the shelf life of inventory, and curremarket conditions when determining exces
obsolete inventories. A reserve is establishecigrexcess or obsolete inventories or they mayriieen off.

Marketing Fees

In prior periods, Marketing fees payable to Abbe#re included in current liabilities in the BalanBheets. In connection with
settlement with Abbott, Marketing fees payable rded in previous periods will not have to be paldhe reversal of this accrual is include:
Litigation settlements, net on the Statements cér@jons.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.

We believe that our market risk exposures regardimgcash and cash equivalents are immaterial adongot have instruments
trading purposes. We shifted the bulk of our fuiit® U.S. Treasury bills and other U.S. governmiatked securities in April 200

Additionally, reasonable, possible near-term charigenarket rates or prices will not result in nmgtechanges in near-term earnings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingdrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Retractable Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheefewéctable Technologies, Inc. as of December 8102and 2009, and the rela
statements of operations, changes in stockholaepsity, and cash flows for each of the three yaatbe period ended December 31, 2C
Our audits also included the financial statemehedale of Retractable Technologies, Inc., listettém 15(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsilgfithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresspamon on these financ
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBigUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to obta@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform an audit of itsrirgl control over financial reportin
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigrénglit procedures that are appropriate ir
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsaiyternal control over financial reportir
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aimitudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptés used and significant estimates made by managt, as well as evaluating the ove
financial statement presentation. We believe thiataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the financial statements referred above present fairly, in all material respects® financial position of Retractal
Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2010 and 2299 the results of its operations and its cashdlfor each of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2010, in conformity with U.Snegally accepted accounting principles. Also, ur @pinion, the related financ
statement schedule, when considered in relatidheddasic financial statements taken as a whotsents fairly in all material respects
information set forth therein.

/s/ CF & Co., L.L.P
CF & Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texa:
March 31, 201:
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2010 2009
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 23,266,03 $ 18,126,08
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fctounts of $780,900 and $681,966, respecti 7,582,06: 9,948,211
Inventories, ne 8,682,19: 6,907,36!
Income taxes receivab 12,03: 3,655,63
Other current asse 681,24« 624,39:
Total current asse 40,223,56 39,261,69:
Property, plant, and equipment, | 12,560,59 14,234,18
Intangible and other assets, 406,91( 445,42t
Total asset $ 53,191,06 $ 53,941,29
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 3,847,96 % 6,997,311
Current portion of lon-term deb 519,61: 2,628,65:
Accrued compensatic 603,48 561,48
Marketing fees payabl — 1,419,76!
Accrued royalties to shareholde 949,61 843,32°
Other accrued liabilitie 3,910,42i 745,46(
Income taxes payab 155,00( —
Total current liabilities 9,986,10: 13,195,99
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti 4,304,46! 4,824,83.
Total liabilities 14,290,56 18,020,82
Commitments and Contingenci- See Note ¢
Stockholder’ equity:
Preferred Stock $1 par valt
Class B; authorized: 5,000,000 she
Series |, Class B; outstanding: 144,000 and 144sb@@es, respectively (liquidation preference dfG4000 and
$900,000 respectively 144,00( 144,00(
Series I, Class B; outstanding: 219,700 and 218, @spectively (liquidation preference of $2,748 and $2,746,250,
respectively, 219,70( 219,70(
Series I, Class B; outstanding: 130,245 and 188 ghares, respectively (liquidation preferenc$Xg628,063 and
$1,628,063, respectivel 130,24! 130,24*
Series IV, Class B; outstanding: 552,500 and 552 &tares (liquidation preference of $6,077,500%6677,500,
respectively’ 552,50( 552,50(
Series V, Class B; outstanding: 1,232,571 and 1&238shares, respectively (liquidation preferenfc®50423,312 and
$5,450,812, respectivel 1,232,57. 1,238,82.
Common Stock, no par value; authorized: 100,00090@0es; issued and outstanding: 23,974,114 a®®@2349 shares,
respectively — —
Additional paicin capital 57,674,73 57,089,15
Retained defici (21,053,25) (23,453,94)
Total stockholder equity 38,900,50 35,920,47
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 53,191,06 $ 53,941,29

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Sales, net
Cost of Sale:
Costs of manufactured prodt
Royalty expense to sharehold
Total cost of sales
Gross profi

Operating expense
Sales and marketir
Research and developme
General and administratiy
Impairment of assets
Total operating expens:
Loss from operations

Interest and other incon
Interest expense, n
Litigation settlements, ni
Income (loss) before income taxes
Benefit for income taxe
Net income (loss)
Preferred Stock dividend requireme
Earnings (loss) applicable to common shareholders

Basic earnings (loss) per shi
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

Weighted average common shares outstant
Basic

Diluted

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
36,21956 $ 38,981,83 $  27,899,31
20,757,48 22,659,43 17,504,84
3,057,61! 2,806,22; 2,168,26:
23,815,10 25,465,66 19,673,11
12,404,45 13,516,17 8,226,20:
3,674,161 4,372,16: 4,835,27;
885,44 1,030,62; 1,066,06:
14,260,15 18,814,39 12,769,77
365,29 2,594,60: —
19,185,05 26,811,77 18,671,11
(6,780,60) (13,295,60) (10,444,90)
32,32 57,60« 855,68t
(302,84 (21,89 (54,35¢)
9,275,76! — —
2,224,63 (13,259,89) (9,643,58)
(176,05) (3,837,59) —
2,400,60. (9,422,30) (9,643,58))
(1,370,62)) (1,370,86) (1,373,01)
1,030,07- $  (10,793,16) (11,016,59)
0.0/ $ (0.45) (0.4€)
0.0/ $ (0.45) (0.46)
23,872,78 23,806,53 23,794,56
26,248,87. 23,806,53 23,794,56

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance as of
December 31, 200

Conversion of Preferred
Stock into Common
Stock

Recognition of stock
option compensatio

Net loss

Balance as of
December 31, 200

Recognition of stock
option compensatio

Recognition of stock
option exercist

Royalty waiver
Net loss

Balance as of
December 31, 200

Conversion of Preferred
Stock into Common
Stock

Recognition of stock
option compensatio

Recognition of stock
option exercist

Payment of dividend
Net income

Balance as of
December 31, 201

Series | Class B Series Il Class B Series Ill Class B Series IV Class B Series V Class B Common
Shares  Amount Shares  Amount Shares  Amount Shares  Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
144,000 $ 144,00 219,70C $ 219,70( 130,24! $ 130,24! 553,50( $ 553,50( 1,282,47. $ 1,282,47. 23,755,41 $ —

— — — — — — (1,000 (1,000 (43,650 (43,650 44,65( —
144,00( 144,000 219,70( 219,70( 130,24! 130,24! 552,50( 552,50( 1,238,82: 1,238,82. 23,800,06 —
— — — — — — — — — — 25,08t —
144,00( 144,000 219,70( 219,70( 130,24! 130,24! 552,50( 552,50( 1,238,82: 1,238,82. 23,825,14 —
_ — — — — — — — (6,250 (6,250 6,25( —
— — — — — — — — — — 142,71t —
144,000 $144,000 219,70 $219,70( 130,24 $130,24! 552,50( $552,50( 1,232,57. $ 1,232,57. 23,974,11 $ —

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St
Recognition of stock option compensat

Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Recognition of stock option compensat
Recognition of stock option exerci

Royalty waiver

Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St
Recognition of stock option compensat
Recognition of stock option exerci

Payment of dividend

Net income

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Additional Retained
Paid-in Earnings
Capital (Deficit) Total
$ 53,818,98 $ (4,388,06) $ 51,760,83
44.,65( — —
88,54¢ — 88,54¢
— (9,643,58)) (9,643,58))
53,952,18 (14,031,64) 42,205,80
2,111,36! — 2,111,36!
25,61( — 25,61(
1,000,001 — 1,000,001
— (9,422,301 (9,422,301
57,089,15 (23,453,94) 35,920,47
6,25( — —
1,340,301 — 1,340,301
115,60( — 115,60(
(876,56¢) — (876,56¢)
— 2,400,69: 2,400,609
$ 57,674,73 $ (21,053,25)$ 38,900,50

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rehcprovided by (used by) operat

activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Litigation settlemen— marketing fees payab
Stock option compensatic
Reserve for nc-contractual deductior
Provision for doubtful accoun
Impairment of asse
Accreted interes
(Increase) decrease in ass
Inventories
Accounts receivabl
Income taxes receivab
Other current asse
Other asset
Increase (decrease) in liabilitie
Accounts payabl
Other accrued liabilitie
Income taxes payab

Net cash provided (used) by operating activi

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant, and equiprn
Investment in LLC
Acquisitions of patents, trademarks, licenses,iatahgibles

Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of lor-term debt and notes payal
Proceeds from lor-term debt
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti
Payment of Preferred Stock divider

Net cash provided (used) by financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of perioc

End of perioc

Supplemental schedule of cash flow informati
Interest paic
Income taxes pai

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding activities:

Debt assumed to construct a warehc
Forgiveness of royalties by sharehol

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

$ 240069 $ (9422,30) $  (9,643,58)
1,516,221 1,396,79: 1,397,33;
(1,419,76) — —
1,340,301 2,111,361 32,62
850,00 — —
133,99( 182,00 224,63
365,29 2,594,60: —
30,92 43,15 54,38
(1,774,82) (265,83) 395,59’
1,382,15: (6,841,26) (1,845,93)
3,643,60 (3,655,63) 2,345,04:
(56,85:) (224,28 (41,306)

_ — (12,725
(3,149,34) 852,87 609,07(
3,313,261 1,015,50! 798,57
155,00 (86,695) —
8,730,67; (12,299,73) (5,686,28)
(169,41!) (2,383,86) (2,580,51)

— — 497,69

— — (89,157)
(169,41)) (2,383,86) (2,171,97)
(2,660,33) (499,66¢) (489,16()
— — 1,123,72!

115,60( 25,61 —
(876,56() — —
(3,421,30) (474,05 634,56
5,139,95! (15,157,65) (7,223,69)
18,126,08 33,283,74 40,507,43
$ 23,266,003 $ 18,126,008 $  33,283,74
$ 32161 $  1840Lt $ 236,93
$ 16,000 $ — % —
$ — $ 136260 $  1,72327
$ — $ 1,000,000 $ —

See accompanying notes to financial statements




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

2.

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Business of the Company

Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Companygs incorporated in Texas on May 9, 1994, and dssigevelops, manufactures,
markets safety syringes and other safety medicatiymts for the healthcare profession. The Comphbegan to develop

manufacturing operations in 1995. The Companyanufacturing and administrative facilities avealted in Little EIm, Texas. T
Company’s primary products with Notice of Substalnfquivalence to the FDA are the VanishP&in0.5mL insulin syringe; 1m
tuberculin, insulin, and allergy antigen syringéee 0.5mL, 2mL, 3mL, 5mL, and 10mL syringes; theaBrdiameter tube adapter; -
blood collection tube holder; the allergy tray; thesafety catheter; and the Patient Safe  syringe.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespl‘GAAP”) requires Manageme
to make estimates and assumptions that affecteperted amounts of assets and liabilities and alsece of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemesutsl the reported amounts of revenues and expensieg the reporting period. Actt
results could differ significantly from those esstes.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egsivalents include unrestricted cash, money ma&eounts, and investments v
original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts receivable

The Company records trade receivables when revenuvecognized. No product has been consigned stomers. The Comparyy’
allowance for doubtful accounts is primarily detéred by review of specific trade receivables. Thascounts that are doubtful
collection are included in the allowance. An aiddial allowance has been established based orcargage of receivables outstandi
These provisions are reviewed to determine thewaisgof the allowance for doubtful accounts. Tresteivables are charged off wi
there is certainty as to their being uncollectibleade receivables are considered delinquent vgagment has not been made wi
contract terms.

The Company requires certain distributors to makeepayment prior to beginning production or shipt&f their order. Distributo
may apply such prepayments to their outstandingig@s or pay the invoice and continue to carryfadatiie deposit for future ordel
Such amounts are included in Other accrued ligslibn the Balance Sheets and are shown in N@¢h@y Accrued Liabilities.

The Company records an allowance for estimatednetas a reduction to Accounts receivable and Gales. Historically, returns he
been less than 0.5% of net sales.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragriwith cost being determined using actual averagt. The Company compares
average cost to the market price and records therlgalue. Management considers such factorseaarttount of inventory on hand ¢
in the distribution channel, estimated time to selth inventory, the shelf life of inventory, andrrent market conditions wh
determining excess or obsolete inventories. Aruesis established for any excess or obsolete toviers or they may be written off.
Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at d&spenditures for maintenance and repairs are elatg operations as incurred. C
includes major expenditures for improvements armglaements which extend useful lives or increasgaciéy and interest cc
associated with significant capital additions. Huor years

F-9




ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, the Congaquitalized interest of approximately $50,0000%200; and $237,000. Ga
or losses from property disposals are includeddome.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated ugegstraight-line method over the following usdiués:

Production equipmet 3to 13 year
Office furniture and equipme! 3to 10 year
Buildings 39 years
Building improvement: 15 years
Automobiles 7 years

Long-lived assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of lmegh assets using an assessment of the estimatBscounted future cash flows rele
to such assets. In the event that assets are toulbe carried at amounts which are in excess toihated gross future cash flows,
assets will be adjusted for impairment to a lewshmensurate with a discounted cash flow analysikefinderlying assets.

During 2009, the Company recognized an impairmématrge of $2,594,602 associated with its cathetedymtion equipment. TI
Company determined it was more cost effective tisauwrce the majority of this production through meéas manufacturers, and thus
Companys catheter production equipment will be utilizedsle Minimal cash flows are expected to be genérbyethis equipmen
Accordingly, the Company reduced the carrying vabfighe catheter production equipment to an estchdair value of zero. TI
Company’s management estimated the fair value eftiuipment based on guidance established birahieValue Measurements and
Disclosures Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards BodFRSB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”)n this instanct
the Companys management determined the impairment charge itiging observable market data, a Level 2 input emthe FASI
ASC. A Level 1 input would require quoted pricesiich were not available in this matter.

During 2010, the Company recognized impairment gésrof $365,295 on equipment designed in connectiith research ar
development activities. The Company will likelytsource the majority of this production through meas manufacturers. Minimal ¢
flows, if any, are expected to be generated byetispment. Accordingly, the Company reduced #reying value of this equipment
an estimated fair value of zero. The Companyanagement estimated the fair value of the eqerpimased on guidance establishe
the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB ASC. In this instance, the Compa management determined
impairment charge by utilizing observable marketada Level 2 input under the FASB ASC. A Levehput would require quott
prices, which were not available in this matter.

The Companys remaining property, plant, and equipment prilgariinsists of buildings, land, assembly equipmensfringes, moldin
machines, molds, office equipment, furniture, amtufes. There has been no impairment charge sgtie assembly equipment si
the Company continues to manufacture a signifipantion of 1cc and 3cc syringes at the Compaiyttle EIm facility which results i
sufficient future cash flows to recoup the net beakue of all property, plant, and equipment.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifieihform with the current year’s presentation.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and condisiagly of patents, a license agreement grantinglusive rights to use paten
technology, and trademarks which are amortizedgutsia straight-line method over 17 years.
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Financial instruments

The Company estimates the fair market value ofnfifel instruments through the use of public magkétes, quotes from financ
institutions, and other available information. domént is required in interpreting data to develaingates of market value a
accordingly, amounts are not necessarily indicatehe amounts that could be realized in a curraatket exchange. Shagrr
financial instruments, including cash and cash\eajants, accounts receivable, accounts payabl®ted liabilities, consist primarily
instruments without extended maturities, the faiue of which, based on Management'’s estimatesledoeir recorded values.

Concentration risks

The Companys financial instruments exposed to concentratidhsredit risk consist primarily of cash, cash eglénts, and accout
receivable. Cash balances, some of which excettdly insured limits, are maintained in finandiadtitutions; however, Managem
believes the institutions are of high credit qualitThe majority of accounts receivable are duemfroompanies which are well-
established entities. As a consequence, Managecoeisiders any exposure from concentrations ofitcresks to be limited. Tt
Company had a high concentration of sales withetlsignificant customers. For the year ended Deee®b, 2010, the aforementior
customers accounted for $13.9 million, or 38.6%effsales.

Considering the current economic climate, the Comwipacreased its allowance for doubtful accountsapproximately $98,934 tt
year.

The Company manufactures syringes in Little Elmxaleas well as utilizing manufacturers in Chinde Tompany purchases mos
its product components from single suppliers, idolg needle adhesives and packaging materialsreTdre multiple sources of th
materials. The Company obtained roughly 64.1%finished products in 2010 through Double Dov€hinese manufacturer. In-
event that the Company becomes unable to purchade moduct from Double Dove, the Company woulddnge find an alterna
supplier for its 0.5mL insulin syringe, its 5mL af@mL syringes, and its autodisable syringe ancege domestic production for 1
and 3mL syringes to avoid a disruption in supply.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales when title and ofslownership passes to the customer, generallyr igfopment. Under certe
contracts, revenue is recorded on the basis ok galee to distributors, less contractual pricirltpv@ances. Contractual prici
allowances consist of: (i) rebates granted to ithistors who provide tracking reports which show,ocag other things, the facility t
purchased the products, and (ii) a provision fdinested contractual pricing allowances for produbtst the Company has not recei
tracking reports. Rebates are recorded when isanddare applied against the customegceivable balance. Distributors recei
rebate for the difference between the Wholesaleufsitipn Cost and the appropriate contract priceredected on a tracking rep
provided by the distributor to the Company. If puotlis sold by a distributor to an entity that Imascontract, there is a standard re
(lower than a contracted rebate) given to the iBistor. One of the purposes of the rebate is tmerage distributors to submit track
reports to the Company. The provision for contrakpricing allowances is reviewed at the end oheguarter and adjusted for char
in levels of products for which there is no tragkireport. Additionally, if it becomes clear thedieking reports will not be provided
individual distributors, the provision is furthedjasted. The estimated contractual allowance tedegainst the individual distributer’
accounts receivable balances for financial repgrgarposes. The resulting net balance is reflertetcounts receivable or accot
payable, as appropriate. The terms and conditbeentractual pricing allowances are governed dmytiacts between the Company
its distributors. Revenue for shipments direatlyehdusers is recognized when title and risk of owngrglaiss from the Company. A2
product shipped or distributed for evaluation pgmis expensed.

Certain distributors have taken rebates to whidy tre not entitled, such as utilizing a rebatepimducts not purchased directly fr
the Company. The Company has been in discussiithghe principal customers that claimed nmmtractual rebates. Major custon
said they have ceased the practices resulting in
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claiming noneontractual rebates. The product for which theyendaiming rebates was actually product they hatdpuirchased fro
the Company. Rebates can only be claimed on pseshaade directly from the Company. The Companyebktablished a reserve
the collectability of these notentractual rebate amounts. The expense for therve is recorded in Operating expense, Gener:
administrative. The reserve for such non-contr@aeductions is a reduction of accounts receivable

The Companys domestic return policy is set forth in its standdBistribution Agreement. This policy providesatra customer mi
return incorrect shipments within 10 days followiagival at the distributos facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain a
authorization code from the Company and affix thdecto the returned product. The Company willatept returned goods withot
returned goods authorization number. The Compaaty mefund the customer’s money or replace the produ

The Companys domestic return policy also provides that a aastomay return product that is overstocked. Owekihg returns al
limited to two times in each 12-month period upl8h of distributor’s total purchase of products foe prior 12month period. A
product overstocks and returns are subject to otgpeand acceptance by us.

The Company’s international distribution agreemeiatsiot provide for any returns.
Marketing fees

In prior periods, Marketing fees payable to Abldatboratories (“Abbott”were included in current liabilities in the Balar@beets. |
connection with the settlement with Abbott, Marketifees payable recorded in previous periods willlrave to be paid. The reverse
this accrual is included in Litigation settlementst on the Statements of Operations.

Litigation Settlements

Proceeds from litigation settlements are recognizkdn realizable. Generally, realization is n@senably assured and expected
proceeds are collected. Pursuant to a settlenggeément among the Company, Abbott, and Hospia,(TRlospira”),Hospira delivere
$6 million to the Company in the third quarter &1B. The Company reduced its litigation settleradnt $144,000 attributable to
unpaid Abbott invoice. Abbott also waived its tigho any Series IV Class B Preferred Stock divitdenAdditionally, the Compal
granted Hospira an exclusive one-year option tatiatg a licensing agreement for certain uses efhtient Safé syringe. As part (
the $8.0 million option payment, the Company reedia payment of $2.0 million in the fourth quaxé&2010.

Income taxes

The Company evaluates tax positions taken or egfdett be taken in a tax return for recognitionha financial statements basec
whether it is “more-likely-than-notthat a tax position will be sustained based uperntéichnical merits of the position. Measureme
the tax position is based upon the largest amdiumeimefit that is greater than 50% likely of beneglized upon ultimate settlement.

The Company provides for deferred income taxesutiinautilizing an asset and liability approach fimahcial accounting and report
based on the tax effects of differences betweerfittaancial statement and tax bases of assets abdities, based on enacted r:
expected to be in effect when such differencesrsevim future periods. Deferred tax assets ardieally reviewed for realizability
Under recent tax law changes, companies are alléavedrry back taxable losses from either 20080892 The Company filed

F-12




for a tax refund utilizing its 2009 taxable lossekich resulted in a $4.0 million refund receivedtie third quarter of 2010. T
Company has established a valuation allowancetfonét deferred tax asset as future taxable inccen@ot be reasonably assur
Penalties and interest on uncertain tax positioeackssified as income taxes in the Statemen@pefations.

Earnings per share

The Company computes basic earnings per share (YERSlividing net earnings for the period (adjusteddny cumulative dividen:
for the period) by the weighted average numbemofimon shares outstanding during the period. t&dEPS includes the determini
of basic EPS and, in addition, reflects the dilateffect, if any, of the common stock deliverablespant to stock options or comn
stock issuable upon the conversion of convertibéfgored stock and convertible debt. The potemiition, if any, is shown on tl
following schedule.

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Net income (loss $ 2,400,69: $ (9,422,300 $ (9,643,58))
Preferred dividend requirements (1,370,620 (1,370,86) (1,373,01)
Earnings (loss) available to common shareholdees absume

conversion: $ 1,030,07:- $ (10,793,16) $ (11,016,59)
Average common shares outstanding 23,872,78 23,806,53. 23,794,56
Dilutive stock equivalents from stock options 2,376,09. — —
Average common and common equivalent shares odiat- assuming

dilution 26,248,87 23,806,53 23,794,56
Basic earnings per share $ 0.0¢ $ (0.45) ¢ (0.4€)
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.0¢ $ (0.45) ¢ (0.46)

Shipping and handling costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling castgart of Cost of sales in the Statements of Gipesa
Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed agthcu
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Share-based compensation

The Company’s share-based payments are accountesify the fair value method. The Company recsftrebased compensati
expense on a straight-line basis over the requssiteice period. The Company incurred the follayéhare-based compensation costs:

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Cost of sale: $ 182,89: $ 317,64« $ (1,797
Sales and marketir 78,34 242,50¢ (2,15¢€)
Research and Developme 28,25¢ 47,16¢ (281)
General and administrati 1,050,801 1,504,03! 36,86
$ 1,340,301 $ 2,111,36! $ 32,62¢

Options awarded to employees in 2009 and 2008 am@tized over twelve months. The Company amattee montts expense f
options granted in 2008 in the fourth quarter &0 The Company expensed five months of expensepiions issued in 2009. Non-
employee Directors’ option expense was all expeivséie third quarter of 2009.
All stock options were fully vested at June 30, @0therefore, all stock option expense was fullognized at June 30, 2010.

3. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009
Raw materials $ 7,485,86. $ 2,424,81
Finished good 1,401,93 4,688,15.
8,887,79. 7,112,96!
Inventory reservi (205,60() (205,600
$ 8,682,19. $ 6,907,36!

4. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment consist of the fuoitq:
December 31

2010 2009
Land $ 261,89 $ 261,89:
Buildings and building improvemen 11,093,79 11,079,90
Production equipmer 14,808,05 14,428,07
Office furniture and equipme! 2,260,21! 2,148,62.
Construction in progres 486,18 1,198,85!
Automobiles 102,32: 102,32:

29,012,47 29,219,67.
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2010 2009

Accumulated depreciatic (16,451,88) (14,985,49)
$ 1256059 $ 14,234,18

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decembhe@030, 2009, and 2008 was $1,482,591; $1,3538%83$1,351,547, respectively.
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31

2010 2009
License agreeme! $ 500,00( $ 500,00(
Trademarks and pater 508,74: 508,74:

1,008,74. 1,008,74.
Accumulated amortizatio (625,50) (582,06¢)

$ 383,23t $ 426,67¢

In 1995, the Company entered into a license agreemih the Chief Executive Officer of the Compafor the exclusive right 1
manufacture, market, and distribute products inigjizautomated retraction technology. This liceageeement was amended Jul
2008 to include certain additional patent applmasi owned by such officer in the definition of “Bxatt Properties5o that such additior
patent applications would be covered by the liceriBais technology is the subject of various patemd patent applications ownec
such officer of the Company. The initial licensiieg of $500,000 is being amortized over 17 yedifse license agreement also prov
for quarterly payments of a 5% royalty fee on greakes. The royalty fee expense is recognizedhenperiod in which it is earne
Royalty fees of $3,057,619; $2,806,223; and $22@Bare included in Cost of sales for the yearsdridecember 31, 2010, 2009,
2008, respectively. Royalties payable under thlise@ment aggregated $949,619 and $843,327 at Dec&hp 2010 and 20(
respectively. Gross sales upon which royaltiesbased were $58,795,279; $56,124,453; and $43,8653 2010, 2009, and 20!
respectively. Royalties were also paid on litigatiroceeds, net of legal fees, and royalties froind tparties on a gross amount of ¢
million.

In the third quarter of 2009, the Company annoursmgeral cost cutting and cash saving initiativesdnserve its cash. As a par
those initiatives, the Chief Executive Officer wail payment to him of $1,000,000 in royalty feesherEfore, the royalty fees
$2,806,223 for 2009 resulted in a cash outlay ¢8@4,223.

Amortization expense for the years ended Decembe?@10, 2009, and 2008, was $43,440; $43,440$48¢697, respectively. Futt
amortization expense for the years 2011 througth 20&stimated to be $43,000 per year.

6. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Other accrued liabilities consist of the following:

December 31

2010 2009
Prepayments from custome $ 3,555,27. $ 499,77"
Accrued professional fet 288,94 191,41¢
Other accrued expens 66,21/ 54,26
$ 3,910,421 $ 745,46(

The increase in prepayments is attributable prigméoipurchases by South American customers.
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LONG-TERM DEBT

December 31
2010 2009

Long-term debt consists of the followin

Loan from Lewisville State Bank, a division ofst International Bank. It has a 20 year amortize
and 10 year maturity from December 10, 2009. Tla lprovided funding for the expansion of
warehouse, additional office space, and a new Glbedr Environment. The loan is secured by
Compan’s land and buildings. The interest rate is 5.96 $ 4,098,570 $ 4,209,60:

Note payable to Katie Petroleum. Interest accraiggime plus 1%, which was 4.25% at Decembe
2010 and 2009. Interest only was payable monthigulth February 1, 2004. The original amc
of the note of $3,000,000 was discounted for presiem purposes by $299,346 for stock opt
issued in conjunction with the debt and $412,500tHie intrinsic value of a beneficial convers
feature of the debt. Beginning March 1, 2004, thenlhas been payable in equal installmen
principal and interest payments (except for changdbe interest rate) of approximately $37,
and matures on September 30, 2012. Guaranteed loffiaar. Approximately $163,736 of t
principal payment was converted into 40,934 shafeSommon Stock as of March 1, 2006.
otherwise collateralized. Convertible into CommadncR at $4.00 per share at the option of
holder. 725,49: 1,097,11.

Note payable to 1st International Bank for $2,500,0The proceeds from the loan paid off
remaining $475,000 of a revolving credit agreemand funded a warehouse and rel
infrastructure. Payments were interest only duthng first 12 months. After 12 months, paym
are based on a 20-year amortization with a jigar maturity on March 29, 2010. The interest
at December 31, 2009 was 4.25% and was based amtbent of funds kept on deposit with
bank. Accordingly, interest varied from the Waltett Journal Prime Rate (the “WSJPRJ)the
WSJPR plus 1%, with floors that may have rangerhfi025% to 6.50%Compensating balances
1st International affecting the interest rate rahfyem $0 to $500,000. The note was secured &
Compan'’s land and buildings — 2,141,99:

Note payable to GMAC. Sixty (60) monthly payment$427. Interest was zero percent. Collatera
by a 2005 Chevrolet va — 3,76z

Note payable to DaimlerChrysler Services North AwerLLC. Sixty (60) monthly payments
$1,009. Interest was 5.49%. Collateralized by e6Zo@ightliner truck — 1,00¢
4,824,07. 7,453,48!

Less: current portio (519,61) (2,628,65)
$ 4,304,461 $ 4,824,83.

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt as afdbéer 31, 2010, are as follows:

2011 $ 519,61:
2012 447,75¢
2013 132,50¢
2014 140,86:
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9.

2015 149,74«
Thereaftel 3,433,59!

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In June 2010, Becton Dickinson and Company (“BBi8d an appeal in the U.S. Court of Appeals fae trederal Circuit appealing
final judgment entered on May 19, 2010 for the Campand against BB’ counterclaims in patent litigation. Such finatlgmen
ordered that the Company recover $5,000,000 plagiggment interest, and ordered a permanent iripmdéor BD's 1mL and 3m
Integra syringes until the expiration of certaingmds. The permanent injunction was stayed fotdhger of the exhaustion of the apj
of the district cours case or twelve months from May 19, 2010. Brigfior the appeal has been completed and oral anguimek plac
March 10, 2011. At this time, a final decisionthg appellate court is anticipated to occur in 2011

In May 2010, the Company and an officesuit against BD in the U.S. District Court foe thastern District of Texas, Marshall Divis
alleging violations of antitrust acts, false adigéng, product disparagement, tortious interferemeel unfair competition was reopen
The Company and an officer filed a Second Amendeah@aint on July 23, 2010 setting forth additiodetail regarding the allegatic
of BD’s illegal conduct. BD filed a motion to dismissdathe Court denied that motion in part and grarntdd part, granting th
Company the right to rplead certain allegations by May 13, 2011. A scitiad conference was held on January 31, 2011 ainicl
date was set for January 10, 2012.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holdimgs, (“MDC”) sued the Company in the United States District Céur the
Eastern District of Texas, Texarkana Division,ially alleging that the Company is infringing twa3J patents of MDC (6,179,812 ¢
7,090,656) that are licensed to BD. BD and MDC sieflinctive relief and unspecified damages. Then@any counterclaimed f{
declarations of nomfringement, invalidity, and unenforceability dfet asserted patents. The plaintiffs subsequentiypgd allegatior
with regard to patent no. 7,090,656 and the Comgabgequently dropped its counterclaims for uneefability of the asserted pater
The Court conducted a claims construction hearimgSeptember 25, 2008 and issued its claims conigtruorder on November 1
2008. A trial date has been set for February 0422

In March 2011, the Company purchased four moldirsgmnes to expand its ilmuse molding capability and further reduce coBl&
purchase price is $453,000 and financing is expectde completed in the second quarter of 2011.

Operating Leases

During 2010, the Company entered into a wancellable operating lease for additional offipace. Rent expense under this lease
$3,495 in 2010. Future annual minimum rental paymas of December 31, 2010 are presented below:

2011 $ 59,19«
2012 60,40(
2013 61,607
2014 62,81
2015 59,96¢
Thereaftel —

Total $ 303,98(

INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of thedfelhg:
For the Years Ended December 3]

2010 2009 2008
Current tax provision (benefi
Federa $ (204,50) $ (3,655,63) $ —
State 28,45( (181,95) —
Total current provision (benefi (176,05) (3,837,59I) —
Deferred tax provision (benefi
Federa — — —
State — — —
Total deferred tax provision (benel — — —
Total income tax provision (benef $ (176,05) § (3,837,59) $ —

The Company recognized a tax benefit in 2009 piilgndue to net operating losses incurred in 2009.

The Company recognized a net tax benefit due tadaitional refund for net operating losses in 2ftigated by Alternative Minimum
Tax in 2010.

The Company has $11,150,486 in tax benefits atatida to carryback losses for federal tax purpo3éee loss carryforwards will be¢



to expire in 2027 for federal tax purposes and béljin to expire for state tax purposes in 2012.
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Deferred taxes are provided for those items refdrtalifferent periods for income tax and finanaigporting purposes. The tax effe
of temporary differences that give rise to sigmifit portions of the deferred tax assets and ltgslare presented below:

December 31

2010 2009
Deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 4,228,820 $ 5,414,557
Accrued expenses and reser 907,62 1,045,12i
Employee stock option expen 682,81( 422,47¢
Inventory 385,85¢ 242.,80°
Non-employee stock option exper 81,31( 183,57(
Charitable contribution carryforwart 26,16¢ 26,16¢
Deferred tax assets 6,312,59 7,334,711
Deferred tax liabilities
Property and equipment (869,909 (687,517)
Deferred tax liabilities (869,909) (687,517
Net deferred assets 5,442,68. 6,647,20
Valuation allowanct (5,442,68) (6,647,20)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ — % —

A reconciliation of income taxes based on the fabstatutory rate and the provision (benefit) ftxdame taxes is summarized as follo

December 31

2010 2009 2008

Income tax (benefit) at the federal statutory rate 35.(% (35.0% (35.0%
State tax (benefit), net of federal (bene 2.9 (2.9 (2.9
Increase in valuation allowan — 4.€ 32.1
Permanent difference 9.1 3.C 04
Cancellation of options under Exchange O — — 5.4
Return to accrual adjustmer (15.0 (0.3 —
Alternative minimum ta 5.8 — —
Release of valuation allowan- Net operating los

carryforward (45.2) — —
Other (0.5) 1.€ —

Effective tax (benefit) rate (7.9% (29.0% —%
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10.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and in various state and locaisdictions. The Companyfedere
income tax returns for all tax years ended on tardbecember 31, 2007, remain subject to examindtjothe Internal Revenue Servi
The Companys state and local income tax returns are subjeekémnination by the respective state and localaaitiss over variot
statutes of limitations, most ranging from thredive years from the date of filing.

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock

The Company has one class of Preferred Stock odlisigi Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (“ClBsStock”). The Class B Sto«
has five series: Series I, Series I, SeriesSé#ries IV, and Series V.

Class B

The Company has authorized 5,000,000 shares oa$tgiue Class B Stock which have been allocateshgn$eries I, 11, Ill, IV, and '
in the amounts of 144,000; 219,700; 130,245; 552,%Md 1,232,571 shares, respectively as of Dece®ihe2010. The remaini
2,720,984 authorized shares have not been assigseries.

Series | Class B

There were 144,000 shares of $1 par value Ser@@ads B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series | €BsStock”) outstanding
December 31, 2010 and 2009. Holders of Seriea$<B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulativeuahdividend of $.50 per sha
payable quarterly if declared by the Board of Dioes. In 2010, the Company paid $216,000 in dindke At December 31, 2010 ¢
2009 approximately $36,000 and $180,000, respdgtioédividends which had not been declared warariears.

Series | Class B Stock is redeemable after thraesyfeom the date of issuance at the option oftbmpany at a price of $7.50 per sh
plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Each sbhf®eries | Class B Stock may, at the option ofdteekholder, be converted to «
share of Common Stock after three years from the afaissuance or in the event the Company filemial registration statement uni
the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to thesedenuo shares of Series | Class B Stock were costvénto Common Stock in 2010.
the event of voluntary or involuntary dissolutidiguidation, or winding up of the Company, holdefsSeries | Class B Stock tF
outstanding are entitled to $6.25 per share, pluscarued and unpaid dividends prior to any disttions to holders of Series Il Clas
Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series Il Class BcBtp, Series lll Class B Convertible Preferred &td¢Series lll Class B Stoch
Series IV Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (i&elV Class B Stock”), Series V Class B Convedilfireferred Stock Beries \
Class B Stock”), or Common Stock.

Series |l Class B

There were 219,700 shares of $1 par value Seri€tals B Stock outstanding at December 31, 20102808. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulasimaual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable gugriedeclared by the Board
Directors. Holders of Series Il Class B Stock galye have no voting rights until dividends are anrears and unpaid for twe
consecutive quarters. In such case, the holdeBgiés Il Class B Stock have the right to elea-#hird of the Board of Directors of t
Company. In 2010, the Company paid $660,566 irddivds. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, approximately $0®#nd $551,0(
respectively, of dividends which had not been dedavere in arrears.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after thesesyfrom the date of issuance at the option ofCtbmpany at a price of $15.00
share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Bhehe of Series Il Class B Stock may, at the optifotine stockholder, be convertec
one share of Common Stock after three years frard#te of issuance or in the event the Company difeinitial registration statem
under the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant toghesms, no shares of Series Il Class B Stock wemgerted into Common Stock in
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2010. In the event of voluntary or involuntarystikition, liquidation, or winding up of the Compamplders of Series Il Class B St
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shdws, all accrued and unpaid dividends, after distion obligations to holders of Seri¢
Class B Stock have been satisfied and prior todistyibutions to holders of Series Il Class B ¥toSeries IV Class B Stock, Serie
Class B Stock, or Common Stock.

Series Il Class B

There were 130,245 shares of $1 par value Seti€ldks B Stock outstanding at December 31, 201020199. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulasimaual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable gugriedeclared by the Board
Directors. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, appreaiety $3,376,000 and $3,246,000, respectively,igfiednds which have not be
declared were in arrears.

Series Ill Class B Stock is redeemable after tlyems from the date of issuance at the option @Qbmpany at a price of $15.00
share, plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Ehahe of Series Ill Class B Stock may, at theooptif the stockholder, be converte:
one share of Common Stock after three years frard#te of issuance or in the event the Company difeinitial registration statem
under the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant toghtesms, nshares of Series Il Class B Stock were conventéal Common Stock
2010. In the event of voluntary or involuntary dissolutjdiquidation, or winding up of the Company, haklef Series Ill Class B Sto
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shaus, all accrued and unpaid dividends, after distion obligations to Series | Clas
Stock and Series Il Class B Stock have been sadisdfnd prior to any distributions to holders ofi&etV Class B Stock, Series
Class B Stock, or Common Stock.

Series IV Class B

There were 552,500 shares of $1 par value Serigglégs B Stock outstanding at December 31, 20102808 . Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulasinaual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable gugrtérdeclared by the Board
Directors. Holders of Series IV Class B Stock gealtg have no voting rights. At December 31, 2048d 2009, approximate
$5,982,000 and $7,583,000, respectively, of dividamhich have not been declared were in arrears.

Series IV Class B Stock is redeemable after thesesyfrom the date of issuance at the option ofCbpany at a price of $11.00
share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Ehehe of Series IV Class B Stock may, at the optibthe stockholder any tir
subsequent to three years from date of issuancepineerted into one share of Common Stock, or emdhent the Company files
initial registration statement under the Securitbeg of 1933. Pursuant to these terms, glares of Series IV Class B Stock v
converted into Common Stock in 2010. In the ewdntoluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolutipor winding up of the Compat
holders of Series IV Class B Stock then outstandirggentitled to receive liquidating distributionis$11.00 per share, plus accrued
unpaid dividends after distribution obligationsSeries | Class B Stock, Series Il Class B StocH, @eries 11l Class B Stock have b
satisfied and prior to any distribution to holdefsSeries V Class B Stock, or Common Stock.

Series V Class B

There were 1,232,571 and 1,238,821 shares of $lvglae Series V Class B Stock outstanding at Deeer@b, 2010 and 20(
respectively. Holders of Series V Class B Stoekeattitled to receive a cumulative annual divideh80.32 per share, payable quarte
if declared by the Board of Directors. HoldersS#ties V Class B Stock generally have no votingtsg At December 31, 2010 ¢
2009, approximately $4,090,000 and $3,693,000 eetsarely, of dividends which have not been declamede in arrears.

Series V Class B Stock is redeemable after twosyfram the date of issuance at the option of then@any at a price of $4.40 per st
plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Each sbiaeries V Class B Stock may, at the option ofdtuekholder any time subsequer
the date of issuance, be converted into CommonkStBarsuant to the terms of the certificate ofigieation, 6,250 shares of Serie
Class B Stock were
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11.

12.

converted into Common Stock in 2010. In the ewdntoluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolutipor winding up of the Compar
holders of Series V Class B Stock then outstandirgentitled to receive liquidating distributions$2.40 per share, plus accrued
unpaid dividends after distribution obligationsSeries | Class B Stock, Series Il Class B StockieSéll Class B Stock, and Series
Class B Stock have been satisfied and prior todéstyibution to the holders of the Common Stock.

Common stock

The Company is authorized to issue 100,000,00@shzrno par value Common Stock, of which 23,974 drd 23,825,149 shares w
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2010 ar@l 2&&pectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has a license agreement with the Elxieutive Officer of the Company. See Note 5.

During the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009266086, the Company paid $75,831; $50,793; and $40 espectively, to fami
members of its Chief Executive Officer for variammsulting services.

During the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009,2a08, the Company paid $20,350, $9,940; and $30,8%pectively, to
Director’s company for participating in clinicalafs.

STOCK OPTIONS
Stock options

A 2008 Stock Option Plan was approved for the gngnof stock options to employees, Directors, andsuiltants. During 1999, t
Company approved the 1999 Stock Option Plan. @gtfor the purchase of 25,680 shares of CommonrkSjmanted under the 19
Stock Option Plan are outstanding. The 1999 S@pgton Plan terminated pursuant to its terms in®20The 2008 Plan is the only p
with stock options currently being awarded. ThemPany has reserved an aggregate 3,000,000 shatesnohon Stock for issuar
upon the exercise of options under the 2008 Stqutio® Plan. Of this amount, options for the pushaf 2,849,108 shares have t
issued.

On September 26, 2008, the Company conducted ahaBge Offer whereby employees, including executifficers, and Directo
exchanged certain outstanding underwater option®fitions issued under the 2008 Stock Option Plarhe Company issued ni
options under the 2008 Stock Option Plan to puretzasaggregate of 962,683 shares of Common Stogkcimange for the cancellat
of the tendered options. Options issued to emgeyested in 2010. Options issued to non-emplByextors vested in 2009.

In July 2009, the Company issued options for thelpase of a total of 1,886,425 shares to Directexecutive Officers, employees, ¢
consultants under the 2008 Stock Option Plan. h3f amount, incentive stock options for the purehas269,956 shares of Comn
Stock and NorQualified Stock Options for the purchase of 229,484res of Common Stock were issued to Executifeed$ ani
Directors. Additionally, in 2009, an option to phase Three Million (3,000,000) shares issued tonTds J. Shaw outside these p
was approved by shareholders.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee administérplans and determines and/or recommends tdBthead exercise prices
which options are granted. All executive compepsatincluding the granting of stock options, idetenined by the Compensation :
Benefits Committee. Shares issued upon exercisgpidns come from the Compagyauthorized but unissued Common Stock.
options vested over periods up to three years fitmendate of grant and generally expire ten yeaey dfie date of grant. Unves
options issued under the 2008 Stock Option Plair@xmmediately after termination of employment.

Employee options

A summary of Director, officer, and employee opfigranted and outstanding under the Plans is peztéelow:
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Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of peri 5,721,52i $ 0.94 1,057,26. $ 1.9¢ 2,187,45! $ 8.8C
Granted — — 4,796,42! 0.81 962,68: 1.3C
Exercisec (142,719 (0.8)) (5,085 (2.30 — —
Forfeited (70,300 (3.09) (127,079 (4.99 (2,092,87) (8.79)
Outstanding at end of perit 5,508,51. $ 0.91 572152 $ 0.94 1,057,26. $ 1.9¢
Exercisable at end of peric 5,508,51. $ 0.91 1,137,40. $ 1.44 147,58( $ 6.2t
Weighted average fair value
options granted during peric — % — — 8 0.5¢ — $ 0.7¢

The fair value of each 2008 option grant is estedadn the date of grant using the binomial optidnipg model with the followin
weighted average assumptions used for grants iB8:2060 dividend yield; expected volatility of 67%3risk free interest rate of 2.83
and an expected life of 8.61 to 8.69 years. Thmnp were issued under the 2008 Stock Option Plan.

The fair value of each 2009 grant is estimatedhendiate of the grant using the Blas&holes pricing model with the following weigh
average assumptions used for grants in 2009: &gbeolatility of 67.53%, risk free interest ratt335%, and an expected life of 8
to 8.69 years. Other than the options issuedécCthief Executive Officer, the options were issueder the 2008 Stock Option Pl:
No options were issued in 2010.

The following table summarizes information aboutdgtor, officer, and employee options outstandinder the aforementioned plan
December 31, 2010:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares

Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable
$ 6.9C 15,08( 1.7t 15,08(
$ 8.6t 2,40( 2.4¢ 2,40(
$ 8.87 70C 3.3¢€ 70C
$ 1.3C 895,21 7.8¢ 895,21:
$ 0.81 4,595,12i 8.54 4,595,12i

Non-employee options
A summary of options outstanding during the yeaideel December 31 and held by non-employees idlag/fo
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Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of peri 391,60( $ 6.52 454,70( $ 8.41 549,70 $ 8.6¢
Granted — — 90,00( 0.84 — —
Exercisec — — (20,000 (0.95 — —
Forfeited (89,100 (10.00) (133,100 (10.00) (95,000 (10.00
Outstanding at end of perit 302,500 $ 5.4¢ 391,600 $ 6.52 454,700 $ 8.41
Exercisable at end of peri 302,50 $ 5.4¢ 391,60 $ 6.52 454,700 $ 8.41
Weighted average fair value
options granted during peric — % — — % 0.61 — $ —

The fair value of each 2009 grant is estimated len date of the grant using the Black Scholes mricimodel with the followin
assumptions: expected volatility of 67.53%, rigefinterest rate of 3.35%, and an expected li&f years. These options were is:
under the 2008 Stock Option Plan. No options vigseed in 2008 or 2010.

The following table summarizes information abouth+mployee options outstanding under the aforemeatigoians at December .
2010:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares
Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable
$ 6.9C 232,50( 1.7¢ 232,50(
$ 0.81 70,00( 8.5¢ 70,00(

The Company recorded $1,340,300; $2,111,360; $38(dffset by a credit of $65,844 for surrendereatktoptions); as stockase!
compensation expense in 2010, 2009, and 2008, atdsgly. The total intrinsic value of options egesed was $124,221; $16,388;
$0 in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. Theeggfe intrinsic value of options outstanding andpifons exercisable at December
2010 was approximately $4.8 million. The total g@mnsation cost related to neasted stock options to be recognized in the fuivat
$0 at December 31, 2010.

Options Pricing Models — Assumptions
The expected life and forfeiture rate assumptimesb@ased on the vesting period for each optiontgaad expected exercise behav
The assumptions for expected volatility and dividigield are based on recent historical experierRigk{ree interest rates are set us

grant-date U.S. Treasury yield curves for the spar@ds as the expected term.
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13.

14.

401(k) PLAN

The Company implemented an employee savings airément plan (the “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that i¢einded to be a tagualifiec
plan covering substantially all employees. Undwer terms of the 401(k) Plan, employees may eledotdribute up to 88% of tht
compensation, or the statutory prescribed limitjeds. The Company may, at its discretion, matetpleyee contributions. T!
Company made matching contributions of $0, $76,&48, $122,000 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectivéfythe third quarter of 20C
the Company discontinued its matching contributions! further notice.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

2010 2009 2008
U.S. sales $ 29,577,05 $ 34,466,799 $ 23,244,37
North and South America sales (excluding U 4,887,07. 1,764,58. 937,69¢
Other international sales 1,755,43! 2,750,45! 3,717,25I
Total sales $ 36,219,56 $ 38,981,833 $ 27,899,31

Long-lived asset:
u.s.
International

$ 12,29794 $ 1396144 $  14,435,66

$ 262,65( $ 272,73t $ —

The Company does not operate in separate reporsggments. The Company has minimal Iltmge assets in foreign countrie
Shipments to international customers generally ireca prepayment either by wire transfer or anvismable confirmed letter of cred
The Company does extend credit to internationatiornsrs on some occasions depending upon certagmiariincluding, but not limite
to, the credit worthiness of the customer, theibtalof the country, banking restrictions, and thiee of the order. All transactions ar
U.S. currency.

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA - UNAUDITED
The selected quarterly financial data for the msi@nded December 31, 2010 and 2009, have beeredidrom the Company’
unaudited financial statements and include all stdjents, consisting only of normal recurring adpestts, necessary for a i
presentation of the results of the interim periods.

(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts

2010
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, net $ 8,46¢ $ 744¢ $ 12,23t $ 8,07(
Cost of sale: 5,01¢ 4,62¢ 7,03t 7,142
Gross profit 3,451 2,82¢ 5,20(C 92¢
Total operating expens 5,63¢ 5,854 4,18¢ 3,511
Income (loss) from operations (2,184 (3,029 1,01t (2,587)
Interest and other incon 6 3 10 14
Interest expense, n (92) (76) (70) (66)
Benefit (provision) for income taxe 2 337 — (15§)
Litigation settlements, nt — — 7,27¢€ 2,00(
Net income (loss (2,277) (2,765 8,231 (7939
Preferred stock dividend requireme (343 (343 (349 (342
Earnings (loss) applicable to common shareholders$ (2,619 $ (3,108 $ 7,88¢ $ (1,139
Net earnings (loss) per sh« basic $ (0.11) $ (0.1%) $ 03 $ (0.0%)
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Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Net earnings (loss) per she diluted (0.1) $ (0.19) $ 0.2¢ (0.05)
Weighted average shares outstanc- basic 23,825,14 23,825,14 23,887,02 23,953,80
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 23,825,14 23,825,14 28,767,76 23,953,80
Gross profit margin 40.8% 37.9% 42.5% 11.5%

(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts

2009
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, net $ 525¢ $ 575¢ $ 10,75: $ 17,21¢
Cost of sale: 4,02¢ 3,418 7,817 10,20;
Gross profit 1,22¢ 2,34( 2,93t 7,012
Total operating expens 5,271 5,121 6,48¢ 9,93¢
Loss from operations (4,042 (2,78)) (3,549 (2,929
Interest and other incon 29 11 14 4
Interest expense, n — — — (22
Benefit for income taxes 10t — 10C 3,63:
Net income (loss (3,909) (2,770 (3,435 691
Preferred stock dividend requirements (349 (349 (349 (342)
Earnings (loss) applicable to common sharehol $ (4,25) $ (3,119 $ (3,779 $ 34¢
Net earnings (loss) per she basic and diluted $ (0.19) $ (0.19) $ (0.1¢) $ 0.01
Weighted average shares outstanding 23,800,06. 23,800,06. 23,803,39 23,822,60
Gross profit margin 23.4% 40.7% 27.3% 40.7%

Major variances for 2010 compared to 2009 are dulwer revenues in 2010, lower operating coststi(udarly litigation costs) i
2010, litigation settlement proceeds received ih®@0mpairment charges taken in 2009, and incomeefands recorded in 2009.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accounté&mon Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securitieh&xge Act of 1934 (the “Exchange ActMlanagement, with the participation
our President, Chairman, and Chief Executive Offid&omas J. Shaw (the “CEO"3nd our Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Douglas W. Cowan (the “CFO"gcting in their capacities as our principal exaaitnd financial officers, evaluated the effecte®s of oL
disclosure controls and procedures, as defineduie R3ai5(e) under the Exchange Act. The term disclosordrols and procedures me
controls and other procedures that are designedisare that information required to be disclosedidyn our periodic reports is: i) record
processed, summarized, and reported within the peréods specified in the Securities and Exchangm@ission’s (the “SEC”yules an
forms; and ii) accumulated and communicated to Management, including our principal executive anmdhgpal financial officers, ¢
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure. Based upon this evaluation, @O and CFO concluded that, as
December 31, 2010, our disclosure controls andgghaes were effective.

Managemeris Annual Report on Internal Control over Finan&eabporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over our finaheeporting as defined

Rule 13a15(f) under the Exchange Act. The term internalticdrover financial reporting means a process desigoy, or under the supervis
of, our principal executive and principal financadficers and effected by our Board of DirectorsaMgement and other personnel, to prc
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability imdintial reporting and the preparation of financtdtements for external purpose:
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptee and includes those policies and proceduras {f) pertain to the maintenance
records that in reasonable detail accurately ainly f@flect our transactions and dispositions séets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thi
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepiafation of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting princig
and that our receipts and expenditures are beirderaly in accordance with authorizations of Mamaget and Directors; and (iii) provi
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tighetigction of unauthorized acquisition, use or as#pon of our assets that could hay
material effect on our financial statements. Mamagnt used thénternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisgicevaluate the effectiveness of our internal rdver financial reporting as requi
by paragraph (c) of Rule 13& under the Exchange Act. Management, with thigggzation of our CEO and CFO, concluded that imterna
control over financial reporting as of December 2110, was effective. No material weaknesses irirdarnal control over financial reporti
were identified by Management.

Our management, including the CEO and CFO, doesxpmct that our disclosure controls and procedor&sir internal control ov
financial reporting will prevent or detect all erscand all instances of fraud. A control systemmatter how well designed and operated
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratetth control system’s objectives will be met.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repaortin

There have been no changes during the fourth quafr2010 or subsequent to December 31, 2010 inmemal control over financi
reporting or in any other factor that has mateyiaffected or is reasonably likely to materiallyfeat our internal control over financ
reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.
The following table sets forth information concexgiour Directors, executives, and certain of ognigicant employees as of the ¢

of this report. Our Board of Directors consistadbtal of seven (7) members, three (3) memberghath are Class 1 Directors and four (4
which are Class 2 Directors which serve for tworyteams.

Term as
Director
Name Age Position Expires
EXECUTIVES
Thomas J. Sha 60 Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer, atas€ 2 2011
Director
Douglas W. Cowal 67 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasufenincipal 2011
Accounting Officer, and Class 2 Direct
Kathryn M. Duesma 48 Executive Director, Global Heal N/A
Russell B. Kuhimai 57 Vice President, Sale N/A
Michele M. Larios 44 Vice President, General Counsel, and Secr¢ N/A
Lawrence G. Salern 50 Director of Operation N/A
Steven R. Wisne 53 Executive Vice President, Engineering & Productowl 2012
Class 1 Directo
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Marco Laterze 63 Class 1 Directo 2012
Amy Mack 43 Class 1 Directo 2012
Marwan Sake 55 Class 2 Directo 2011
Clarence Zierhu 82 Class 2 Directo 2011
SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES
Shayne Blythe 42 Director of Sales and Marketing Logisti N/A
John W. Fort lll 42 Director of Accounting N/A
James A. Hoove 63 Director of Quality Assuranc N/A
R. John Mada 50 Production Manage N/A
Judy Ni Zhu 52 Research and Development Mana N/A

Executives

Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder, has served as Chaiofm#re Board, President, Chief Executive Officand Director since o
inception. We believe it is appropriate for Mr.a8hto continue to serve as a Director and as the@r@han of the Board because of his ¢
knowledge of the strengths and weaknesses of amdupts (as their primary inventor) and of the Comypéas its Founder). Further,
strategic knowledge of the Company and its comigeténvironment arising from his ongoing servicasita CEO is vital to the succes:
supervision of the Company by the Board of DirestoFinally, Mr. Shaws educational background in both Engineering andoAnting i
helpful to Board deliberations. In addition to tdsities overseeing our Management, he continuelead our design team in prod
development of other medical safety devices théizeit among other things, his unique patentedtific ring technology. Mr. Shaw
extensive experience industrial product design and has developed segetations to complicated mechanical engineerirgllehges. He hi
been granted multiple patents and has additiortehpapending.

Douglas W. Cowan is a Vice President and our CRia&ncial Officer, Treasurer, Principal Accounti@dficer, and a Directol
Mr. Cowan joined us as Chief Financial Officer amat elected to the Board of Directors
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in 1999. We believe it is appropriate Mr. Cowamtatue to serve as a Director due to his levelnebivement in the financial state of
Company (as its CFO) as well as his lead role pestising all internal control and disclosure cohfprocedures and statements. He
serves as the primary contact for investors whichbtes him to bring their concerns to the Boardappropriate topics as they arise.

expertise as a CPA and experience as the Comp&#0 allow him to guide the Board, upon requedt) vegard to financial matters. He
responsible for our financial, accounting, risk mgement, and forecasting functions.

Kathryn M. Duesman, RN, joined us in 1996 and autfyeserves as the Executive Director, Global HealShe provides clinic
expertise on existing products as well as thosgeielopment. She has been instrumental in devedapaining and marketing materials .
has spoken and been published on safety issuesDidsman works with international agencies to menthe use of safe technologie
developing countries.

Russell B. Kuhlman joined us in February 1997 andur Vice President, Sales. Mr. Kuhlman is respigla for management of t
sales force and liaison with GPOs and product itrgifior our sales organization, as well as distidou Mr. Kuhlmans efforts with us hay
resulted in bringing onboard Specialty Distributonsfluencing legislation, and educating influehtteealthcare representatives about
benefits of our product line. Mr. Kuhiman is resggel throughout the industry and is a main contdabto the safety effort in this country.

Michele M. Larios joined us in February 1998 andrently serves as our Vice President, General Gaduasd Secretary. Ms. Lar
is responsible for our legal and legislative, humesource, and regulatory functions. In additiorwbrking on legal matters and with outs
counsel, Ms. Larios works with legislators on pegtit issues and relevant legislation.

Lawrence G. Salerno has been employed with us si8& and has served as Director of Operationsugosince 1998. He
responsible for the manufacture of all our produess well as all product development and procesgldpment projects. In addition,
supervises all aspects of the construction andresipa of our facilities in Little EIm, Texas. MBalerno is the brother of a 5% sharehc
(and consultant to the Company) who ceased tolt®@shareholder in 2008.

Steven R. Wisner joined us in October 1999 as Hiex¥ice President, Engineering and Production asi@ Director. We believe
is appropriate that Mr. Wisner continue to serva &irector due to his extensive experience in af@mal management. His role in overse
all engineering, production, and foreign salesveditim to provide timely and insightful guidancgaeding the effect of Board decisions on
Company’s abilities to meet its goals. Mr. Wisserésponsibilities include the management of emging, production, Chinese operatic
quality assurance, information technology, andritaéonal sales. Mr. Wisner has extensive expeden product design, development,
manufacturing.

Independent Directors

Marco Laterza joined us as a Director effectiveofiarch 22, 2005. We believe it is appropriate. Materza continue to serve ¢
Director because of his skills as a CPA in actixacpce as well as his decades of experience irsadvindividuals and entities with regarc
corporate planning and financial issues. SucHsshitd experience provide a valuable contributiohis role as the designated financial e»
on the Audit Committee as well as provide valuabldgependent accounting advice to the Board. Sik8%8, Mr. Laterza has owned :
operated a public accounting practice. His practicludes corporate, partnership and individuahtian, compilation/review of financi
statements, financial planning, business consyléing trusts and estates. From 2004 to the pré&ertaterza has also served as the Trea
for EZ Blue Software Corporation, a private softe’aompany. Since 2009, Mr. Laterza has served@s Rfesident of SpectraComp, Cor}
private holding company. Formerly, Mr. Laterza veasployed in a number of positions from 1977 to5.@8th El Paso Natural Gas Compi
eventually serving as its Director of Accounting.

Amy Mack joined us as a Director on November 19)720We believe it is appropriate that Ms. Macktomre as a Board member «
both to her experience as a nurse (the primaryl tetar of our products) as well as her experigna@inning her own company. Since Apri
2000, she has been the Secretary of EmergiStafégoéiates, a nursing agency, in Dallas, Texas.
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Marwan Saker joined our Board of Directors in JA660. We believe it is appropriate that Mr. Sat@mtinue to serve as a Direc
due to over a decade of experience in internatiboainess as well as his specific expertise ineisgelating to international distributic
Mr. Sakers experience as a business owner competing inienadly provides additional necessary insight to Board. Since 1983, Mr. Sal
has served as Chief Executive Officer of Sovana, la private international trade company. Sin®861 he has served as Presider
International Exports & Consulting Inc., a privaeport management company acting as sales repatigentmaster franchisee and franc
consultant developing Middle East markets for nwouerU.S manufacturers in agriculture, fast foodnapand contract furnishing industri
Since 1995, he has served as Manager of Hanneke, @oprivate trust. Since 2000, he has servea ldember of My Investments, LLC
private entity. Since 2002, he has served as d@esdf Saker Investments Inc., a private investmempany. He is also President of Figl
Development, a private real estate development eosp Mr. Saker has acted as a representative f8r tbmpanies seeking distributi
licensing, and franchising in the Middle East, Epgpand North Africa. Mr. Saker was instrumentabeveloping successful partnership
more than 15 countries.

Clarence Zierhut has served on our Board of Dirscséince April 1996. We believe it is appropriéde Mr. Zierhut to continue 1
serve as a Director primarily due to his lifetinfeegperience in conception and development of imtige products as well as his experienc
adapting such products to address mass produssoes. During his professional career, Mr. ZiehHas created over 3,000 product design
more than 350 companies worldwide, in virtually gviéeld of manufacturing, and has won many intéiorel awards for design excellen:
His clients have included Johnson & Johnson, Abléaduld, and McDonnell Douglas.

Significant Employees

Shayne Blythe has been with us since 2001 andri®wector of Sales and Marketing Logistics. Skedsponsible for developing ¢
implementing strategic directions, objectives, coshgnsive sales and marketing plans, and progrémaddition, she directs and oversee
aspects of the distribution process and customeicgepolicies in order to monitor and maintain touser satisfaction.

John W. Fort Ill is our Director of Accounting. MFort joined us in March of 2000 as a Financiablst and has served as
Director of Accounting since October of 2002. ldrmary responsibilities include managing the degdy operations of the Accounting
Finance Department and coordination of the annudits, and interim reviews by our independent aotants, as well as our cost accoun
and forecasting functions.

James A. Hoover joined us in February 1996 andursDirector of Quality Assurance. Prior to his being Director of Qualit
Assurance he was Production Manager. He is reggerfer our quality assurance functions. Mr. Hephas also developed and impleme
FDA required procedures and has been involveddrFDA inspection process.

R. John Maday joined us in July 1999 and is ourdBction Manager. He is responsible for supervisiérthe production of ol
products. Prior to becoming Production Managedamuary 1, 2005, he served as our Production Ge®eparvisor. Mr. Maday has extens
manufacturing experience in both class Il and Iédical devices.

Judy Ni Zhu joined us in 1995 and is our Researcth@evelopment Manager. Her primary focus is on peoduct development a
improvement of current products. Prior to joiniag, Ms. Zhu worked as a design engineer with MavBln the original 3mL syringe a
other SBIR grant projects.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS

There are no family relationships among the ab@regns except as set forth above.

DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER COMPANIES

No Directors hold directorships in reporting comigan
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INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None of the above persons or any business in wduich person was an executive officer have beerviegtdn a bankruptcy petitio
been subject to a criminal proceeding (excludimadfitr violations and other minor offenses), beehjsct to any order enjoining or suspenc
their involvement in any type of business, or bparty to an alleged violation of a securities l@amnmodities law, law or regulation respec
financial institutions or insurance companies, awegulation prohibiting mail or wire fraud, orles of any organization that has disciplir
authority over its members.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMRNCE

Section 16 of the Exchange Act requires our Dinegtexecutive officers, and persons who own moae 0% of a registered clas:
our equity securities to file with the SEC initi@ports of beneficial ownership (Form 3) and repoftchanges in beneficial ownership (Fa
4 and 5) of our Common Stock and our other equtusties. Officers, Directors, and greater th@folshareholders are required by the SEC’
regulations to furnish us with copies of all Seetii(a) reports they file. Two shareholders ealed to timely file a beneficial ownersl
report. On February 22, 2011, Steven R. Wisnedfd late Form 5 relating to a transaction on Déeg, 2010. On March 2, 2011, Suze
M. August filed a late Form 4 relating to a trartgaton October 28, 2009.

CODE OF ETHICS

Effective as of March 9, 2004, we adopted a codetbics that applies to all employees, includingt, ot limited to, our princip
executive and financial officers. Our Code of Bigsis Conduct and Ethics is designed to deter waingdnd to promote:

1. Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethi@ldiing of actual or apparent conflicts of intesds¢étween persor
and professional relationshig

2. Full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandabgldisure in reports and documents that we file vathrsubmit to, th
SEC and in our other public communicatio

3. Compliance with applicable governmental laws, rugesl regulations
4. The prompt, internal reporting of violations of thede to an appropriate person or persons ideshiifi¢he code; an
5. Accountability for adherence to the co

A copy of the code, as amended in 2009, is incatedrherein as Exhibit No. 14We have posted a copy of the code on our we
at www.vanishpoint.com/investor.asp. Please foltberlink to “Governance” then follow the link t&€harters,” then click onRVP Corporat
Code of Conduct.”Any amendment to this code or waiver of its appiaato the principal executive officer, principfihancial officer
principal accounting officer, or controller or slari person shall be disclosed to investors by meéasForm 8K filing with the SEC. We wi
provide to any person without charge, upon req@estpy of such code of ethics. Such requestsighigusubmitted in writing to Mr. Dougl
W. Cowan at 511 Lobo Lane, P.O. Box 9, Little Elfexas 75068-0009.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

We have a separatetlesignated standing Audit Committee establishedctordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the ExchaAgt
consisting of Clarence Zierhut, Marco Laterza, Matwan Saker. Each of the members of the Audit @dtee is independent as determi
by the NYSE Amex rules.
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Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that we feveast one financial expert serving on the A@timmittee. Mr. Marco Later
serves as our designated Audit Committee Finamocipert. Mr. Laterza is independent as definedMiedit Committee members by the list
standards of the NYSE Amex.
ltem 11. Executive Compensation.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Obijectives of Our Compensation Plan

Our executive officer compensation program (the ffpensation Program’is based on the belief that competitive compensat
essential to attract, retain, motivate, and rewagthly qualified and industrious executive officel®ur Compensation Program is intende
accomplish the following:

attract and retain highly talented and productixecetive officers;

provide incentives and rewards for superior peréomoe by the executive officers; and

align the interests of executive officers with theerests of our stockholders.

What the Compensation Program Is Designed to Award
Our Compensation Program is designed to award gibrior long-term performance by our executivéecefs and their loyalty.

Summary of Each Element of Compensation

To achieve these objectives, the Compensation amfig's Committee has approved an executive offioenpensation program tl
consists of four basic components:

base salary;

short-term incentive compensation in the form aftchonuses;

periodic long-term incentive compensation in therf@f stock options; and

medical, life, and benefit programs (which are galhe available on the same terms to all employees)
Why We Choose to Pay Each Element of Our Compensati Program
Base Salary

We choose to pay a significant component of our pemsation in base salary due to the fact that man€ial performance
constrained by the monopolistic activities of Bid/e have been blocked from access to the markexdysive marketing practices engage
by BD who dominates the market. We believe ttanibnopolistic business practices continue desfijtés paying $100 million to settle
prior lawsuit with us in 2004 for anticompetitiveagtices, business disparagement, and tortiousfénéece and (ii) the fact that its Inte
products were found to infringe our products in N2&10. The Cour$ injunction in this case was stayed pending app¥alil such time ¢
we believe that we have access to the market, Wevbethat it is appropriate to weigh our Compeiwsafrogram heavily in favor of be

salaries rather than in incentive compensation.
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Cash Bonuses

From time to time and when our cash reserves alleevgrant cash bonuses in order to reward sigmifieforts or the accomplishmt
of short term goals. The Compensation and Ben€fitmittee granted such bonuses in 2010 to cesteoutive officers in recognition of 1
time and effort expended by such executive offiaehnich led to the settlement agreement with Ablwoid Hospira. The preparation for
trial and ultimate settlement was an extraordirtane commitment for the executive officers to whoonuses were granted and resulted
total of approximately $14 million payable to usotime. Thomas J. Shaw declined any bonus.

Prior to 2010, the last bonuses were granted ir3200
Long-Term Incentives: Stock Options

Long-term incentives are provided through grants oflstmations. The grants are designed to align therésts of executive office
with those of stockholders and to provide each ethee officer with a significant incentive to mareffom the perspective of an owner witt
equity stake in the Company.

How We Determine the Amount or Formula for Paymentin Light of Our Objectives

Executive compensation remains the same until tisemereview of such compensation by the Compemsatnd Benefits Committe
Compensation, other than that of the Chief Exeeu®fficer, has generally not been reviewed annuallnder the terms of Mr. Shasv’
employment agreement, his compensation is revienedally.

Base Salary

The base salary for each of our executive officesbjectively determined primarily on the badishe following factors: experienc
individual performance, contribution to our perf@nce, level of responsibility, duties and functiogalary levels in effect for compara
positions within and without our industry, and mm&l base salary comparability considerations. elmw, salaries can also be affected by
long-term needs.

These base salaries are reviewed periodically aagdbe adjusted based upon the factors discusstbe iprevious paragraph, as v
as upon individual performance during the previfissal year, changes in the duties, responsilgligiad functions of the executive officer,
general changes in the compensation peer grougichwve compete for executive talent. The relatigght given to each of these factor
the Compensation and Benefits Committeeécommendation differs from individual to indival, as the Compensation and Ben
Committee deems appropriate.

Beginning August 1, 2009, all employees above #atersalary level had their salaries reduced by .108ihough certain sala
reductions remain in place, we granted paymentsutoemployees to offset such salary reductiondiénfirst and third quarters of 2010.
Executive Officers’ and other employees’ salariestinue to be reduced by 10% from the levels pigoAugust 2009. However, Mr. Shasv’
Employment Agreement provides salary is automdtidacreased by the percentage increase in theucoes price index (“CPI”from the
previous year. The Compensation and Benefits Cétmendecided to increase Mr. Shawalary (which has also been cut by 10%) by $t
over his 2010 salary for 2011.

Cash Bonuses

The bonuses, when paid, are paid on a discretiobasjs as determined by the Compensation and Ber@fmmittee. Factc
considered by the Compensation and Benefits Comenithclude personal performance, level of respditgiband the factors used
determination of base salary as stated above, exadpa greater focus on the prior fiscal yeaheTCompensation and Benefits Comm
also considers our need to retain cash in decidimgther to grant cash bonuses.
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Long-Term Incentive: Stock Options

We have issued stock options to our employees fiora to time and may do so in the future. We didlissue any stock options
2010. We issued new options under the 2008 Statlo® Plan to purchase an aggregate of 962,68&sldrCommon Stock in exchange
the cancellation of tendered options pursuant t&xrhange Offer in 2008. We issued incentive stogtions (“ISOs”)for the purchase
269,956 shares of Common Stock and Non QualifietkSOptions (“NQSOs”Yor the purchase of 229,494 shares of Common Sto
Executive Officers and Directors under the 200&BtOption Plan in July 2009. Options are genergignted to regular fulime employee
and officers except to our CEO.

In 2009, the Compensation and Benefits Committemtgd the first option to Thomas J. Shaw, our C&Bich option grant wz
approved by the shareholders later that year. dgt®n was granted outside of any plan and wagHerpurchase of 3,000,000 share
Common Stock.

If stock options are to be issued, Management pespa proposal to the Compensation and Benefitsn@ittee. Considerations
Management in its initial proposal in determininguitable aggregate fair market value of optionedaranted include our financial conditi
the number of options already outstanding, and#refit to the nomxecutive officer employees. The proposal includésmation relating t
the expected expense of such grants to be recahbizeis, the approximate number of options to badd, the number of options curre
outstanding, the employees to be included, the amofistock currently outstanding, and the methoden which the options would
awarded.

Once the dollar amount of options to be grantedpproved by the Compensation and Benefits Commilitsnagement begi
determining the aggregate number of shares underltyptions that can be granted under such app(baakd on the fair value of an option
the purchase of one underlying share). Factotaded in the determination of the value of an aptjpant for the purchase of one share inc
current market price of the Company’s stock, theppsed exercise price, the proposed expiration, tlagevolatility of the Compang’ stock
and the risk free rate. We may retain an indepetoletside consultant to determine such valuethénpast we have utilized the BlaSkhole
model as well as the binomial model, but we mayaiker methods in the future as more appropriathods are developed.

Management provides the Compensation and Beneditsn@ittee with a proposal regarding option grantexecutive officers. If tt
recommendation is acceptable, the committee gthateptions. If the committee feels changes anétedk it grants options on its own terms.

With regard to many past grants, after the aggeegaimber of shares underlying the options to batgdawas determined,
allocated the options to our various departmentsgua factor based on their annual compensatiorgitheir performance rating. 1
individual employee’s allocation factor was the rarator of a fraction. The denominator was the depent's sum of all factors (annt
compensation times performance ratings of all tlgghdée employees). The resulting fraction was tiplied by the stock options to be awar
to determine the employeeindividual portion of the aggregate approvedami Future grants may be based on the valuentfilcotions tc
the Company and not necessarily pursuant to amyufiar.

The allocation was, from time to time, further mwved by each departmestnanagement if they believed certain employees we
awarded an appropriate number of options, whichadament would consider.

Each stock option grant to employees allows theleyee to acquire shares of Common Stock at a fix@ke per share (never I
than the closing stock price of the Common Stocktendate of grant) for a fixed period (usually $exars). With regard to grants priol
2009, each option generally became exercisable #itee years, contingent upon the emplogeedntinued employment with us.
exceptions include options issued to Officers arickd@ors pursuant to the Exchange Offer, which egstnmediately for noemploye:
Directors and after one year for employees (incigd¢mployee Directors) and options granted in 20B&h vested in one year for execu
officers and immediately for noemployee Directors. Accordingly, generally stagkion grants will provide a return to the employedy if
the employee remains employed by us during théngeperiod, and then
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only if the market price of the underlying Commaidk appreciates. Future grants may vest ovepdestor longer period.
How Each Compensation Element and Decision Fits IntOverall Compensation Objectives

Our Compensation Program is intended to accomplishfollowing objectives: 1) attract and retain hiigtalented and producti
executive officers; 2) provide incentives and redgafor superior performance by the executive officand 3) align the interests of execu
officers with the interests of our stockholders.

We ensure, through periodic retention of compearatbnsulting experts to provide a benchmark amalysindustry compensatic
that overall compensation is sufficient to attractd retain highly talented and productive executificers. We pay the bulk of ¢
compensation in the form of cash compensation dued fact that competing in an antmpetitive environment means that results will
always be commensurate with performance. We beltbat the performance of our executives has bedstamding. We believe this
especially true given the artémpetitive environment in which we operate. B@wuare granted occasionally to recognize extraary
performance and/or extraordinary job requirememé& believe this approach and weighting of compmsalements is necessary to re
our executive talent due to the environment in Whi@ operate.

Periodically, we grant stock options with the iritea provide both an incentive and reward to exgeubfficers for longtermr
performance and to align the interests of our eyg#e with that of the shareholders.

Allocation Between Long-Term/Current and Between Cah/Non-Cash Compensation

All of our long-term compensation consists of mash compensation in the form of stock options. Wkeve that the granting
stock options incentivizes executives to maximige longterm strengths as well as our stock price. Howevecause we are operating
monopolistic environment and our stock price htkelrelationship with our performance, the mog#icant component of compensatiol
base salary and not stock options. Managemententivized to maximize shareholder value and héllrewarded if they do so. Howeve
significant base salary enables us to retain thispetent Management despite the current inabdigyrovide valuable equity incentives.

How Determinations Are Made as to When Awards Are @nted

Generally, option awards to executive officers granted by the Compensation and Benefits Committekfor others are grantec
the discretion of the Board after recommendatiothefCompensation and Benefits Committee or orwdinemittees own initiative. No awart
are granted if the Compensation and Benefits Cotaedoes not support a recommendation.

Unfortunately, our stock price does not always reacexpected to our achievements. Accordingliinas, options have been grar
to aid in retaining competent and experienced ezl without regard to the then current stock ari¢iowever, such options always h
exercise prices that are at or above fair markietevan the date of grant.

In addition, there is no relationship between tagedf grant of options and our possession of ri@teonpublic information (i.e., w
grant options without regard to whether or not we ia possession of material npaoblic information as we usually are in possessibauct
information). Furthermore, it is our policy withgard to options that (although the options coaakercised) the underlying shares coulc
be sold into the market while the executive wapadasession of material ngublic information under our insider trading policiccordingly
we believe that there is minimal risk of the exaauprofiting from such material nonpublic infornat.

What Specific Items of Corporate Performance Are Téen Into Account in Setting Compensation Policiesrad Making Compensatior
Decisions

Cash reserves as well as trends in sales andarestaken into account when considering the adiligabf increasing base salaries
granting cash bonuses. However, no specific itef®rporate performance are taken into accousetting executive compensation due tc
fact that we compete in a monopolistic environnaend,
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therefore, significant achievement or performamsceadt always correlated with corporate results.séth times that any of these factors ma
inadvisable to increase salaries or grant bonusexlgisable, then consideration is given to indngasption awards taking into account
value of prior option awards.

Awards are granted on the basis of historical parémce. Accordingly, there is no discretion toragthe awards once granted.
How Compensation Reflects Individual Performance

Executive compensation is not based on the indalidwcontribution to specific, quantitative corporatgectives due to the fact tl
we compete in a monopolistic environment. Howetlee, individuals contribution to our performance is determinedspant to qualitativ
factors as discussed above under “How We Deterthem@mount or Formula for Payment in Light of Oubj€xtives.”

Factors We Consider in Determining to Change Compesation Materially

We consider our cash position, current liquidignils, and the short-term and Ilalegm needs for cash reserves (especially in lif
the hostile environment in which we operate) whealw@ating whether we can change compensation rafjeat a given time.

On an individual-by-individual basis, we also calesithe value of past option compensation, the etitiyeness of that individuad’
base salary, and that individual’s contributioroto goals.

The Impact of the Accounting and Tax Treatments oDur Types of Compensation

Stock options granted to executives and other eyepl® are expensed for accounting purposes und&tdlok Compensation Topic
the Financial Accounting Standards Board AccounStandards Codification. We expense all of ouromptosts as we do the costs of sali
and any periodic bonuses. Accordingly, the impafctax treatment of various compensation forms doet impact our compensati
decisions. Stock option expense is not recogniaetax purposes, except in the case of non-qedlifitock options. For najqualified stoc
options, the intrinsic value of the option is resizgd when the option is exercised.

Our Policy Regarding Stock Ownership and Hedging

We do not have a policy regarding stock ownerslyipekecutive officers. We prohibit certain stoclrtsactions by employees
Directors, including:

1. Purchases and sales of our stodkinwé six month period,;
2. Short sales; and
3. Transactions in puts, calls, or ottherivative securities involving our stock.

Furthermore, employees and Directors are requagad-clear any hedging transactions.
Benchmarking of Our Compensation Program

In 2003, we hired Trinity Executive Recruiters,.Irto assist us in providing benchmarks for the rgal@mponent of executi
compensation by similarly sized companies in simidustries for persons that hold positions whacé currently fulfilled by various memb
of our executive team. These benchmarks at le@gtost existing executive compensation.
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The Role of Our Executives and Directors in Deterntiing Compensation

Management establishes the initial recommendatiegarding compensation for all employees, includhmgmselves. Such propc
is then submitted to the Compensation and Beng&titemittee for its approval.

Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreement

We have an Employment Agreement with Mr. ThomaShhw which was modified effective January 1, 200&void adverse ti
consequences to Mr. Shaw created by the passdge Afmerican Jobs Creation Act of 2004. No othecatives or Directors are compens:
pursuant to employment agreements.

Our Employment Agreement with Mr. Shaw (the “Empt@nt Agreement”provides for an initial period of three years whixde:
December 31, 2010 and automatically and continyoresiews for consecutive twgear periods. The Employment Agreement is termie
either by us or Mr. Shaw upon 30 days’ written o@tbr upon Mr. Shaw’s death.

The Employment Agreement provides for an annuargalf at least $416,399.88 with an annual salacyeiase equal to no less t
the percentage increase in the CPI over the pmar.y The Employment Agreement requires that Mav®$ salary be reviewed by 1
Compensation and Benefits Committee annually, whledll make such increases as it considers apptepriMr. Shaw took a 10% salary
in August of 2009, along with all other executiviicers and other employees earning over a ceralary. In 2010, Mr. Shaw recei
$41,681.64 to offset his salary reductions throAggust 20, 2010. In 2011, the Compensation ancesnCommittee increased his salar
$6,421 over his 2010 salary.

Under the Employment Agreement, we are obligatepréeide certain benefits, including, but not liedtto, participation in qualifie
pension plan and profit-sharing plans, participatio the Companyg Cafeteria Plan and other such insurance bengfitéided to othe
executives, paid vacation, and sick leave. Weatse obligated to furnish him with a cellular télepe and suitable office space as we
reimburse him for any reasonable and necessargfquicket travel and entertainment expenses indusgehim in carrying out his duties ¢
responsibilities, membership dues to professiorgdmizations, and any business-related seminarsanfdrences.

Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, we are digiigto indemnify Mr. Shaw for all legal expensesurt costs, and all liabilitie
incurred in connection with any proceeding invotyimim by reason of his being an officer, employ®eagent of the Company. We are fur
obligated to pay reasonable attorney fees and eggeand court and other costs associated witheféisie in the event that, in Mr. Shavgol
judgment, he needs to retain counsel or otherwipered his personal funds for his defer

Upon his death, Mr. Shaw/estate shall be entitled to his salary throughd#te of death, applicable benefits, and reimipuese o
expenses.

We have the right to terminate the Employment Agreet if Mr. Shaw incurs a permanent disability dgrithe term of h
employment. A permanent disability means that 8fvaw is unable to engage in any substantial gaadtiVity by reason of any medice
determinable physical or mental impairment which ba expected to result in death or can be expeotéabt for a continuous period of
less than 12 months or is, by reason of any mdgidaterminable physical or mental impairment whaztn be expected to result in deat
can be expected to last for a continuous periagobiess than 12 months, receiving income replaceétmenefits for a period of not less the
months under an accident and health plan coverngla®ees of the Company. Mr. Shaw shall also benwsl to be disabled if he
determined to be totally disabled by the Socialusiec Administration. In such event, Mr. Shaw istiled to his salary through the date
termination, reimbursement of expenses, and s&dary period of 24 months as well as applicableefien

Mr. Shaw’s employment may be terminated for cause whictefgéd to be conviction of a felony which is maadlgi detrimental t
the Company, proof, as determined finally by a toficompetent jurisdiction of the gross negligencevillful misconduct which is material
detrimental to the company or proof, as determifiedlly by a court of competent jurisdiction, oflmeach of a fiduciary duty which
materially detrimental to the
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Company. In such event, he shall be entitled $cshlary through the date of termination plus reirmbment of expenses.

If Mr. Shaw is terminated without cause and nohiatimplicit request, Mr. Shaw shall be entitledhis salary through the date
termination, reimbursement of expenses, his sdtarg4 months, as well as applicable benefits.

If Mr. Shaw resigns (other than because of a changeontrol), he is entitled to his salary throuttfe date of terminatio
reimbursement of expenses, salary for 90 daysapplicable benefits.

Mr. Shaw has the right under this agreement tagresi the event that there is a change in contPol:‘Change of Control”shall be
deemed to have occurred on either of the follovdates: (i) the date any one person (other tharSkiaw), or more than one person acting
group, acquires (or has acquired during thenttith period ending on the date of the most reeequisition by such person or perse
ownership of stock of the Company possessing 30%ane of the total possible voting power of thecktef the Company (assuming
immediate conversion of all then outstanding cotiller preferred stock) or (ii) the date a majoritfymembers of the Board of Director:
replaced during any 1&wonth period by Directors whose appointment or tedacis not endorsed by a majority of the membefrghe
Companys Board of Directors before the date of the appoént or election. Mr. Shaw further has the rightdsign if there is a change
ownership. A change in ownership is defined toehagcurred on the date that any one person (dtler Mr. Shaw) or more than one pel
acting as a group acquires ownership of the Comigastpck that, together with the stock previouslidh®y such person or group, constiti
more than 50% of the total fair market value oaltatoting power (assuming the immediate conversibmll then outstanding convertil
preferred stock) of the Company. In such event $taw is entitled to salary through the date ofmieation, salary for 24 montt
reimbursement of expenses, and applicable benefits.

Mr. Shaws commitment to the Company may not be construegragenting him from participating in other busises or fror
investing his personal assets as may require aotasdr incidental time in the management, congemvaand protection of such investme
provided such investments or businesses cannairstraed as being competitive or in conflict witle tusiness of the Company.

Mr. Shaw has agreed to a one-year nompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employe®sohe year, and not make known
customers or accounts or to call on or solicit accounts or customers in the event of terminatiohi®employment for one year unless
termination is without cause or pursuant to a ckasfgcontrol or ownership.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation and Benefits Committee has reveavel discussed the COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANASIS
required by Item 402(b) with Management, and, basedhe review and discussions referred to in pagdy (e)(5)(i)(A) of Item 407, h
recommended to the Board of Directors that the CEMBATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS be included in threport on Form 10-K.

CLARENCE ZIERHU1
MARCO LATERZA
AMY MACK
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SUMMARY OF TOTAL COMPENSATION

The following Summary Compensation Table sets ftrthtotal compensation paid or accrued by us thespast three fiscal years
or for the account of the principal executive ddficthe principal financial officer, and the thigghest paid additional executive officers:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2008 -2010

Option All Other
Salary ® Bonus Awards @ Compensation® Total

Name and Principal Position Year $ $ $) $) $)
Thomas J. Sha 2008 416,54t — — 4,60( 421,14t
President and CE! 2009 399,88' — 1,762,501 4,80¢ 2,167,19!
(principal executive officer 2010 427,85: — — — 427,85:
Michele M. Larios 2008 350,54( — 6,84: 4,60( 361,98:
Vice President 2009 336,67t — 89,85¢ 4,047 430,58:
General Counst 2010 350,05: 200,00( — — 550,05:
Douglas W. Cowal 2008 290,00t — 6,46( 4,60( 301,06(
Vice President, CF( 2009 278,28 — 57,57t 3,34¢ 339,21(
(principal financial officer, principe 2010 290,40t 35,00( — 325,40t

accounting officer

Steven R. Wisne 2008 290,02( — 6,694 4,60( 301,31
Executive Vice Presider 2009 278,28 — 13,80¢ 3,12¢ 295,21¢
Engineering and Productic 2010 290,00( 15,00( — — 305,00(
Russell B. Kuhimai 2008 140,00( — 4,01¢ 2,80(C 146,81
Vice President, Sale 2009 133,76¢ — 14,68¢ 1,60¢€ 150,06
2010 139,99: 5,00(C — — 144,99.
@ The following amounts included in t8alary column represent nonrecurring payments rmdéfset salary reductions, as descr

above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysiteuthe subheading Base Salary: for Thomas J. Skély682; for Douglas W. Cow:
$29,000; for Steven R. Wisner, $29,000; for MichdleLarios, $35,000; and for Russell B. Kuhiman0Q{b8.

2 Except for the option granted to Bhaw, all options issued during or after 2008 wgranted under the 2008 Stock Option P
Options issued prior to 2008 were issued undeeeitie 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan, the 19@8I5Option Plan for Directors and Ot
Individuals, or under the 1999 Stock Option Pldihe employees who had such options were permittezk¢thange them for options grar
under the 2008 Stock Option Plan pursuant to am&xge Offer in 2008.

Option award expense for 2008 is that portion effdir value of the options issued under the Exgkabffer in 2008. The exper
for the options issued under the Exchange Offerfulsamortized in 2009. The fair value of eadd08 option grant was estimated on the
of grant using the binomial option pricing modettwthe following weighted average assumptions deegjrants in 2008: no dividend yie
expected volatility of 67.53%; risk free intereate of 2.83%; and an expected life of 8.61 to §6€8rs. The options were issued unde
2008 Stock Option Plan, a copy of which Plan weesifas Appendix B to our definitive Schedule 14ladion August 19, 2008.

The fair value of each 2009 grant is estimated len date of the grant using the Blas&holes pricing model with the followi
weighted average assumptions used for grants if::288pected volatility of 67.53%, risk
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free interest rate of 3.35%, and an expected fifg.@1 to 8.69 years. Other than the options d4aeMr. Shaw, the options were issued u
the 2008 Stock Option Plan.

No options were granted in 2010.

The expected life and forfeiture rate assumptiorsbased on the vesting period for each optiontgrad expected exercise behav
The assumptions for expected volatility and dividigield are based on recent historical experierRigk-free interest rates are set using grant
date U.S. Treasury yield curves for the same psrésdthe expected term.
3) This amount was compensation purst@atir matching contributions to the 401(k) plan.

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

Please se€ompensation Pursuant to Employment Agreemenabove and POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION (
CHANGE IN CONTROL below for terms of our only emphoent agreement in effect.

For each Named Executive Officer, salary and beapsesent 100% of total compensation for 2010.
OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The following Outstanding Equity Awards at FiscaéafEnd Table sets forth information regarding unesadioptions held by t
principal executive officer, the principal financaficer, and the three highest paid additiona@&xive officers as of December 31, 2010.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2010 Fiscal Year Enc
Option Awards

Number of
Securities
Underlying Option
Unexercised Exercise Option
Options Price Expiration
Name Exercisable (%) Date
Thomas J. Shar 3,000,001 0.81 7-15-19
President, CE(
(principal executive officer
Michele M. Larios 97,05( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President 152,95( 0.81 7-15-19
General Counst
Douglas W. Cowal 102,00( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President, CF( 98,00( 0.81 7-15-19
(principal financial officer, principal
accounting officer
Steven R. Wisne 100,70( 1.3C 11-18-18
Executive Vice Presider 23,50( 0.81 7-15-19
Engineering and Productic
Russell B. Kuhimai 63,45( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President, Sale 25,00( 0.81 7-15-19
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PENSION BENEFITS

We do not have a pension plan other than the 4@igk) which is available to all employees the fogthe month after 90 days
service.

401(k) Plan

We implemented an employee savings and retiremiamt @ghe “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that is intendedlde a taxgualified plai
covering substantially all employees. Under thiengeof the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect tordmute up to 88% of their compensation
the statutory prescribed limit, if less. We may,oar discretion, match employee contributions. YWade matching contributions of
$76,643, and $122,000 in 2010, 2009, and 2008 entisely. Of these matching contributions, $0, 88, and $21,095 were to execu
officers in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.e $Mspended matching contributions beginning Augu2009 until further notice.

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CATROL

The following table identifies the types and amauait payments that shall be made to Mr. Thomas SbawCEO, in the event o
termination of his employment or a change in cdrper his Employment Agreement. Such payments figamade by us and shall be one-
time, lump sum payments except as indicated below.

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN C ONTROL
ASSUMING OCCURRENCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010%

Salary Amounts
Through Owed Payment
Trigger Under Undiscounted Salary Equal to
Event Benefit Reimbursement For a Period of 24 90 Days’ Value of
Payment Triggering Event Date Plans® of Expenses Months Salary Payments®
Death X X X — — —
Disability X X X 772,344 — 772,344
Termination With Caus X — X — — —
Termination Without Caus X X X 772,344 — 772,344
Resignation (Other Than After a
Change in Control X X X — 96,543 772,344
Resignation (After a Change in
Control) X X X 772,344 — 772,344
(1) The above payments would be paid uidie Shaws agreement at certain times. Any payments aria;g result of disability

resignation would be paid not sooner than six morghd one day from the termination date but nadrl#tan seven months from

termination date. Any payments arising as a resfulieath would be paid no later than the@ay following the death. Payments arising
result of termination with cause or terminationheitit cause would be paid not later than thé& 3fay following the date of termination exc
that any amount due in excess of an amount equbkttesser of two times annual compensation ortimes the limit on compensation un
section 401(17) of the Internal Revenue Code o61898h amount in excess shall be paid no earlger #ix months and one day after the
of termination but in no event later than seven therafter the date of termination. Under Mr. Sreagreement, Mr. Shaw has agreed
one-year noreompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employessohe year, and not make known our customers aouets or to call on
solicit our accounts or customers in the eveneohtnation of his employment for one year unlegstérmination is without cause or
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pursuant to a change of control. However, it i$ clear that the above payments are conditionedhenperformance of these contrac
obligations.

(2) Mr. Shaw participates in our bengfans which do not discriminate in scope, termsmaration in favor of executive officers. S
plans are generally available to all salaried eygds. Accordingly, the value of such paymentsoincluded in the “Value of Payments
column.

3 This value does not include paymemder our benefit plans for reasons set forth otrfote 2 above. In addition, this value asst
that the triggering event occurred on Decembe2810. Authorized payments under the Employmeneagrent are also capped to one d
less than the amount that would cause Mr. Shave tind recipient of a parachute payment under Se280G(b) of the Internal Revenue Cc
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The following table identifies the types and amasuot compensation earned by our Directors (with ékeeption of those that ¢
named Executive Officers as described in footnadiethe table) in the last Fiscal Year:

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2010

Fees Earnec

or Paid in All Other
Cash Compensation Total
Name® $) ($)@ $
Marco Laterze $ 3,50C $ 20,000 $ 23,50(
Amy Mack $ 2,50C $ 40,35(® % 42,85(
Marwan Sake $ 3,50C $ 20,000 $ 23,50(
Clarence Zierhu $ 3,50C $ 20,000 $ 23,50(
@ Thomas J. Shaw, Douglas W. Cowan, 3teten Wisner are Named Executive Officers whoatse Directors. Their compensal

is reflected in the Summary Compensation and dttdes presented earlier.

2 Each of the non-employee Directorssvpaid a ondgime payment of $20,000 in September 2010 for midher service to tt
Corporation.
(3) Of this amount, Ms. Mack’s companysweid $20,350 for participating in clinical triafs2010.

Narrative Explanation of Director Compensation Tabk for 2010

In 2010 we paid each namployee Director a fee of $500 per meeting anchivarsed travel expenses. We have granted tc
Director stock options for Common Stock. We do pey any additional amounts for committee partitgraor special assignment.

Each of the non-employee Directors was paid a tone-payment of $20,000 in September 2010 for hisher service to tt
Corporation. We have never before issued suclym@at to our non-employee Directors and have nospla do so again in the future.

Generally, employee Directors are compensated omtavill basis as discussed in the COMPENSATION DISCU3$ AND
ANALYSIS. However, one employee, Mr. Thomas J. 8haur President and CEO, is compensated pursoaa mployment agreeme
Please see “Compensation Pursuant to Employmermtetgnt”, set forth above for an in depth summarhetterms of such agreement.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Eipgtion

The Compensation and Benefits Committee is cuyrectimposed of Messrs. Clarence Zierhut and Marderkza, and Ms. A
Mack. Each of these members of this committea imdependent Board member and none have everdmployees of the Company.
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There are no interlocking Directors or executivéicefs between us and any other company. Accolgingpne of our executi
officers or Directors served as a Director or exiweuofficer for another entity one of whose exéaes or Directors served on our Boart
Directors.

COMPENSATION POLICIES AND PRACTICES AS THEY RELATEO RISK MANAGEMENT

We do not believe that risiaking incentives are created by our compensatidicips. We do not have business units. We beltea
our compensation expense is a reasonable perceafagwenues overall. We have not set specifidoperance criteria for the award
bonuses. Salaries and bonuses, if any, are awéaes on skill, experience, and our overall regsnuNoneash awards to employees
made periodically in the form of stock options, ethiwe believe align the employeasterests with those of stockholders. We review
compensation policies and practices as they r&datisk management objectives if compensation artsoare materially amended or if our |
profile changes. No changes to our compensatitici@®and practices have been implemented asuét ifchanges to our risk profile.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattest
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table sets forth information relatitggour equity compensation plans as of Decembg?®10:
Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of securities

remaining available
for future issuance

Number of securities to Weighted average under equity
be issued upon exercise exercise price of compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column(a))
Plan category (@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: 5,586,01. $ 0.92 271,86°
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders’ 225,000 $ 6.9C —
Total 5,811,01. 271,86

*

We authorized the issuance of anviddal option plan for the purchase of 200,000 skaf Common Stock to Jimmie Shiu, M
for his past services in introducing us to purchasé various series of Preferred Stock as wefbasntroducing us to Mr. Jack Jackson, \
controlled Katie Petroleum. The option is exerisat $6.90 per share and will terminate in 2012.

We authorized the issuance of an individual opptan for the purchase of 25,000 shares of CommookSb Mr. Harry Watson fi
his past services in assisting us in protectingimtatlectual property. The option is exercisaité&6.90 per share and will terminate in 2012.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee author{zed the shareholders approved) a grant of an rogto the purchase
3,000,000 shares of Common Stock to our CEO, Tham8baw. The option is exercisable at a pricBOoB1 per share, the market price or
date of grant. The option will terminate in 2019.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table sets forth certain informatigegarding the beneficial ownership of our capitatk as of March 1, 2010, for et
person known by us to own beneficially 5% or moir¢he voting capital stock. Except pursuant tolapple community property laws, et
shareholder identified in the table possessesvaieg and investment power with respect to hib@rshares, except as noted below.

Amount and
Nature of
Name and Address o Beneficial Percent of

Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class ®
Common Stocl

Thomas J. Sha® 14,590,00 53.9%

511 Lobo Lane

P.O. Box 9

Little Elm, TX 7506¢0009

Suzanne M. Augugd 3,800,001 15.8%

5793 Lois Lane

Plano, TX 7502«

Lillian E. Salernc® 1,856,00! 7.7%

432 Edwards

Lewisville, TX 75067

Lloyd I. Miller, 11l ® 1,255,97! 5.2%

4550 Gordon Drive

Naples, FL 3410:

ROI Capital Management, Mark T. Boyer, and Mitclie 1,197,37. 5.C%

Soboleski®

300 Drakes Landing Road

Suite 175

Greenbrae, CA 949C
Class B Stocl

Thomas J. Sha' 80,00( 3.5%

Lillian E. Salernc 12,50( <1%
() The Percent of Class is calculatedtie Common Stock class by dividing each bendfmiener's Amount of Beneficial Ownersh

as shown in the table above, by the sum of thd tmitstanding Common Stock (23,988,414 shares) thlas beneficial ownes' stocl
equivalents (options and/or preferred stock), if.aifthe Percent of Class is calculated for the €E&stock by dividing each beneficial owrer’
Amount of Beneficial Ownership, as shown in thddabove, by the total outstanding Class B sh& 259,016 shares).

2 3,000,000 of the shares identifiedcCasnmon Stock are shares acquirable through theisgeof a stock option. 80,000 of the sh
identified as Common Stock are preferred sharestwaie eligible for conversion into Common Sto@800,000 of the shares are owne:
Ms. Suzanne August (see footnote 3) but are cdetrdly Mr. Shaw pursuant to a Voting Agreemente§ehshares are permanently contr
by Mr. Shaw until such time as they are sold by Msgust. These shares are included in the shaosiiat® and percentages for both Mr. S
and Ms. August in the above table. Mr. Shaw ma®stment power over 1,000,000 shares of CommookSis Trustee pursuant to ti
agreements for the benefit of family members. Msgust has voting control over such 1,000,000 shaseSpecial Trustee (see footnote
These shares are included in the share amountsexoentages for both Mr. Shaw and Ms. August iratieve table.
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3) Ms. Augus$ 2,800,000 shares are controlled by Mr. Thom&hadw pursuant to a Voting Agreement. These staeefcluded i
the share amounts and percentages for both Mr. &hdws. August in the above table. Ms. Augast Yoting control over 1,000,000 sh:
of Common Stock as Special Trustee pursuant to agreements for the benefit of family members.. $traw has investment power over ¢
1,000,000 shares as Trustee. These shares andedcin the share amounts and percentages forNbotS8haw and Ms. August in the abi
table.

4) 12,500 of the shares identified agn@mn Stock are preferred shares which are eligimeconversion into Common Stock ¢
25,000 shares identified as Common Stock are shdrieh are obtainable by the exercise of a stodloop

(5) The number of shares held by thisperwas obtained from a Schedule 13G/A filed onrkaly 9, 2011. Pursuant to the Sche
13G/A, Lloyd I. Miller, 1ll has sole voting and giesitive power for 303,300 of the shares, and shaoting and dispositive power for 952t
shares.

(6) The number of shares held by thessgms was obtained from a Schedule 13D filed onustug3, 2010. Pursuant to Schedule :
these persons have sole voting and dispositive pdae all reported shares which are held in adwisaccounts of ROl Capit
Management, Inc.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth certain informatigggarding the beneficial ownership of our capitatk as of March 1, 2010, for et
Named Executive Officer specified by Item 402 ofRlation &K (i.e., our CEO, CFO, and three other highest jpdfiters) and each Direci
of the Company. Except pursuant to applicable camity property laws or as otherwise discussed bekmeh shareholder identified in
table possesses sole voting and investment povier@spect to his or her shares.

Amount and
Nature of Percent
Name of Beneficial of
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class(1)
Common Stocl
As a Groug Named Executive Officers and Directt 15,887,90 59.2%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha® 14,590,00 53.9%
Marwan Sake® 445,50( 1.8%
Clarence Zierhu® 62,50( <1%
Douglas W. Cowar® 200,00( <1%
Steven R. Wisne® 129,45( <1%
Russell B. Kuhlmai” 89,45( <1%
Michele M. Larios® 261,00( 1.1%
Marco Laterz&® 60,00( <1%
Amy Mack 10 50,00( <1%
Class B Stocl
As a Groug Named Executive Officers and Directt 435,00( 19.(%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha 80,00( 3.5%
Marwan Sake 355,00 15.5%
Q) The Percent of Classis calculated tfee individuals holding Common Stock by dividimgch beneficial ownes’ Amount o

Beneficial Ownership, as shown in the table abbyethe sum of the total outstanding Common Sto&9@8,414 shares) plus that benef
owner’s stock equivalents (options and/or prefestadk), if any. The Percent of Class is calcddte the “As a Grouptows by totaling all ¢
the Percent of Class percentages appearing irhtiré for individuals for each relevant class. Hegcent of Class is calculated for the Class B
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stock by dividing each beneficial owngrAmount of Beneficial Ownership, as shown in tige above, by the total outstanding Class B s
(2,279,016 shares).

(2) 3,000,000 of the shares identifiedCasnmon Stock are shares acquirable through thesisgeof a stock option. 80,000 of the sh
identified as Common Stock are preferred sharestwarie eligible for conversion into Common Sto@800,000 of the shares are owne!
Ms. Suzanne August but are controlled by Mr. Sipamsuant to a Voting Agreement. These shares emmagnently controlled by Mr. Shi
until such time as they are sold by Ms. August.edéhshares are included in calculating Mr. Skgvercentages in the above table. Mr. £
has investment power over 1,000,000 shares of CanBhack as Trustee pursuant to trust agreementhddvenefit of family members. Th
shares are included in calculating Mr. Shaw’s pstiages in the above table.

3) 355,000 shares identified as CommimtiSare preferred shares which are eligible forveosion into Common Stock. The shares
held as follows: Saker Investments holds 15,500eshaf Series IV Class B Convertible Preferred Sted 25,000 shares of Series V Cla
Convertible Preferred Stock, Sovana Cayman Isldnds,holds 300,000 shares of Series IV Class BvEdible Preferred Stock, and |
Investments Co. LLC holds 14,500 shares of Se¥eSlass B Convertible Preferred Stock. Mr. SakearigOfficer or Director and sharehol
for each of these companies. The remaining 90,5@@es identified as Common Stock are shares clyrebtainable through the exercise
options held by Mr. Saker.

4) 62,500 of these shares identifie@ammon Stock are shares acquirable by the exastisteck options.

(5) These shares are acquirable by thecese of stock options.

(6) 124,200 of these shares are acqeitapkthe exercise of stock options.

(7) 88,450 of these shares identifie@€ammon Stock are shares acquirable by the exastisteck options.

(8) 250,000 of these shares identifiec€Cammon Stock are shares acquirable by the exenfis®ock options. 1,000 of these share:

owned by Ms. Larios’ children.

(9) 50,000 of these shares identifie€asmmon Stock are shares acquirable by the exesEseck options.

(10) These shares identified as CommonkSioe shares acquirable by the exercise of stotikrop

There are no arrangements, the operation of whalddwesult in a change in control of the Compantker than:
1. Ms. August’s shares shall cease to be controjellr. Shaw under their Voting Agreement upontisaie to a third party; and
2. Mr. Shaw was granted an option for the purclds 000,000 shares of Common Stock. Mr. Shavbie d@o control 53.9% of tl
currently outstanding shares of the Common Stoak would control 45.2% of the Common Stock assumntimg exercise of ¢
outstanding options and conversion of all outstagdireferred shares and convertible loans.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains, and Director Independence

Related Party Transactions

We believe that all of the transactions set forloly were made on terms no less favorable to us ¢bald have been obtained fr
unaffiliated third parties. In accordance with durdit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee hegiewed and approved all related p
transactions. In particular, the Audit Committee reviews all poged transactions where the amount involved meetzaeeds $120,000.

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and Chief Executiffeeed, beneficially owned 32.14% of the outstargli@ommon Stock (ai
controlled another 15.84% pursuant to a Voting &grent with Ms. Suzanne August and trust agreenfenthe benefit of family members)
of March 1, 2010. In 1995, Mr. Shaw was paid &rngng fee of $500,000 (amortized over 17 yearsudyor the exclusive worldwir
licensing rights to manufacture, market, sell,
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and distribute retractable medical safety produétgoyalty of 5% of gross sales of all licenseddgucts sold to customers over the life of
Technology Licensing Agreement is paid. Of thigalty, Ms. Suzanne August, the former spouse of Shaw, is entitled to $100,000
guarter. Mr. Shaw receives the remainder of thyalty. A royalty of $2,552,095, $1,183,883 waspa Thomas J. Shaw in 2010 and 2!
respectively. Ms. August received $400,000 in 2amf 2009. Royalties of $949,619 were paid to $haw and Ms. August from Januar
2011 through March 1, 2011. In the third quarte2@09, the Company announced several cost cuttitigtives to conserve its cash. As |
of those initiatives, Mr. Shaw waived $1,000,000dgalty payments, most of which affected cashaystlin 2009.

Director Independence

The Board of Directors has the responsibility fetablishing corporate policies and for our ovepatformance, although it is r
involved in day-today operations. Currently, a majority (four of @By of the Directors serving on our Board of Dicgstare independe
Directors as defined in Section 121(A) of the figtistandards of the NYSE Amex. Our current inddpen Directors are Messrs. Clare
Zierhut, Marwan Saker, and Marco Laterza, and MayMack. Each of our committees is constituteelyoby independent Directors.

The Board of Directors, in reviewing the indeperztenf its members, further considered the fact Wepaid Ms. Macls compan
$20,350 in 2010 and $9,940 in 2009 for conductifigical trials. The Board of Directors determinétht her independence was
compromised by such transactions.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit of anurual financial statements
2010 and 2009 and the reviews of the financialestants included in our Forms T@-or services normally provided by the accounta
connection with statutory and regulatory filings foose fiscal years were $193,300 and $273,93perively.

AUDIT RELATED FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit of 4k (k) plan for 2010 and 20
were $13,520 and $11,500, respectively.

TAX FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. forgaration of federal and state income tax retantstax consulting costs relate:
notices from taxing authorities for 2010 and 20@9ev$65,438 and $64,929, respectively.

PRE-APPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The engagement of CF & Co., L.L.P. was entered picsuant to the approval policies and procedufethe Audit Committee
Before CF & Co., L.L.P. was engaged to render ses/the engagement was approved by the Audit CagemifThe engagement is for a
and tax services which were detailed separatehe Audit Committee implemented its approval procedyi.e., they were not delegated to
other party. All of the services provided were-pmproved by the Audit Committee.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(@ (1) Allfinancial statements: See Retractable Techrnieygnc. Index to Financial Statements on Pe-2.

(2) Those financial statement schedules required fiddzkby Item 8 of this form, and by paragraph lfleJow. Schedule -Schedule ¢
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ehddecember 31, 2010, 2009, and 2(

Balance at
beginning Balance at
of period Additions Deductions end of period
Provision for Inventorie
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 205,600 $ — 8 — 8 205,60(
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 205,60( $ — 3 — 3 205,60(
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 205,600 $ — 8 — 8 205,60(
Provision for Accounts Receivabl
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 254,00¢ $ 245,95¢ $ — 8 499,96t
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 499,96t $ 182,00( $ — 8 681,96t
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 681,96t $ 98,93 $ — $ 780,90(
Deferred Tax Valuatio
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 3,666,93 $ 2,366,45. $ — 3 6,033,38!
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 6,033,38 $ 613,81¢ $ — 8 6,647,20.
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 6,647,20. $ — 8 1,204,52; $ 5,442,68:
Provision for Rebate (A) (B)
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 4,638,49. $ 13,62525 $  14,395,90 $ 3,867,841
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 3,867,841 $ 16,554,16 $  14,365,03 $ 6,056,97.
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 6,056,997 $ 16,862,73 $ 11,817,388 $  11,102,32
(A) Represents estimated rebates deddiciedgross revenues
(B) Represents rebates credited to theilolisor
3) Exhibits:
The following exhibits are filed herewith or incomated herein by reference to exhibits previousddfwith the SEC.
(b) Exhibits
Exhibit Description of Document
No.
3() Restated Certificate of Formation with Certificatdesignation, Preferences, Rights and LimitatiohClass B Preferred Stc
(all Series) *
3(ii) Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of RT
4 Restated Certificate of Formation with Certificatd®esignation, Preferences, Rights and LimitatiohClass B Preferred Stc
(all Series) *
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Exhibit
No.

Description of Document

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

14

23

311

31.2

32

Sample United States Distribution Agreement
Sample Foreign Distribution Agreement*

Employment Agreement between RTI and Thomas J. Steted as of January 1, 2008 (This is a manageommpensatic
contract.) ****

Technology License Agreement between Thomas J. @haviRTI dated the 2z day of June 1995**
First Amendment to Technology License Agreemenivbeh Thomas J. Shaw and RTI dated the 3rd daylyf2008 T

Loan Agreement among RTI, Katie Petroleum and ThothaShaw as of the &' day of September, 2002 and Promis
Notett

RTI's 1999 Stock Option Plan**

First Amendment to 1999 Stock Option Plan’

Retractable Technologies, Inc. 2008 Stock OptianPt Tt

Thomas J. Shaw Nonqualified Stock Option Agreentesued Outside of Any Ple

Voting Agreement Between Thomas J. Shaw and SuzAngest dated November 8, 20°°
Retractable Technologies, Inc. Code of BusinessiGorand Ethicee°

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing °c°°

Certification of Principal Executive Officeeee

Certification of Principal Financial Officece°

Section 1350 Certificatioree°

*%
*k%

*kkk

Tt
Tttt
T+t

Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1+-Q filed on November 15, 201

Incorporated herein by reference to ’'s Form K filed on May 13, 201(

Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Registration Statement on Forn-SB filed on June 23, 20(
Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1+-Q filed on November 14, 20(

Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Form 1-K filed on March 31, 200

Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Form &K filed on October 10, 200

Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1+-KSB filed on March 31, 200

Incorporated herein by reference to ’s definitive Schedule 14A filed on August 19, 2(
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()

Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Form 1-K filed on March 31, 201
Incorporated herein by reference to 's Schedule TO filed on October 17, 2(
Incorporated herein by reference to ’'s Form K filed on February 19, 201
Filed herewitt

Excluded Financial Statement Schedules: N
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this repot
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theéoeduly authorized.

RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC
(Registrant’

By: /s/ Thomas J. Sha
THOMAS J. SHAW
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

Date: March 31, 201:

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpuhe following persons
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

s/ Steven R. Wisne

Steven R. Wisne

Executive Vice President, Engineering
Production and Directc

March 31, 201

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa

Douglas W. Cowal

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Princigadcounting Officer,
Treasurer, and Directt

March 31, 201:

s/ Clarence Zierht
Clarence Zierhu
Director

March 31, 201

/sl Amy Mack
Amy Mack
Director

March 31, 201

/s/ Marco Laterzi
Marco Laterze
Director

March 31, 201

/s/ Marwan Sake
Marwan Sake
Director

March 31, 201:
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Exhibit 2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRlegistration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-15587d 333-1300419f Retractabl
Technologies, Inc. of our report dated March 311 2€elating to our audit of the financial statenseamd financial statement schedule, w
appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Ratthle Technologies, Inc. for the year ended Dece®@bg2010.

/s/ CF & Co., L.L.P
CF & Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
March 31, 2011




Exhibit 31.:
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Thomas J. Shaw, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amndtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, tegqas presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervi:
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymgiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presaémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiwger financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosé@sed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaodmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal contnér financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize, and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2011

/S/ THOMAS J. SHAW
THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Douglas W. Cowan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amndtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, tegqas presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervi:
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymgiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presaémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiwger financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosé@sed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaodmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal contnér financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize, and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2011

/S/ DOUGLAS W. COWAN

DOUGLAS W. COWAN

VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICEF




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Solely in connection with the filing of the Annuakport of Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Camyd) on Form 1K for the period ende
December 31, 2010, as filed with the United St&esurities and Exchange Commission on the dateohéiee “Report”),the undersigne
Thomas J. Shaw, Chief Executive Officer, and Dosigha Cowan, Chief Financial Officer, do hereby iégrtpursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sect
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the financtidition and results of operations of
Company.

Date: March 31, 2011

/SI THOMAS J. SHAW
THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

/S/ DOUGLAS W. COWAN

DOUGLAS W. COWAN

VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER, AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTINC
OFFICER




